

# Request for Proposal

**FOR** 

REAL ESTATE MARKET ASSESSMENT AND FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY FOR PROPERTIES IN VICINITY OF METRO LINE-3

Mumbai Metro Rail Corporation Limited E Block BKC, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra East, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400051

# Table of Contents

SF	ECTI	ON 1: Letter of Invitation (LOI) & Details of Tender	4
	A.	Background	4
	B.	Eligibility Criteria	4
	C.	Duration of services	4
	D.	Deemed Knowledge and Disclaimer	6
	E.	Guidelines for E-Tendering	6
SI	ECTI	ON 2: Instructions to Consultants and Data Sheet	8
	A.	Instructions to Consultants (ITC)	8
	1.	Definitions	8
	2.	Introduction	9
	3.	Conflict of Interest	9
	4.	Unfair Competitive Advantage	10
	5.	Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices	10
	6.	Eligible Assignments	11
	7.	Award of Contract	11
	8.	Only One Proposal	11
	9.	Proposal Submission	11
	10	O. Proposal Validity	12
	1	1. Extension of Validity Period	12
	12	2. Sub-Contracting	12
	13	3. Clarification and Amendment of RFP Documents	12
	14	4. Preparation of Proposals – Specific Considerations	12
	1:	5. Language	13
	10	5. Technical Proposal Format and Content	13
	1′	7. Financial Proposals	14
	18	8. Taxes, Currency of Proposal & Payment	14
	19	9. Submission, Sealing, and Marking of Proposals	14
	20	O. Confidentiality	14
	2	1. Opening of Technical Proposals	15
	22	2. Proposal Evaluation	15
	23	3. Evaluation of Technical Proposals	15
	24 B	4. Public Opening and Evaluation of Financial Proposals -QCBS (For a. Quality- and Costased Selection) (80:20)	
	2:		

2	26.	Technical negotiations	16
2	27.	Availability of Key Professional staff/experts	17
2	28.	Financial negotiations	17
2	29.	Conclusion of the negotiations	17
3	30.	Award of Contract	17
B.	DA	TA SHEET	18
SECT	ION :	3: TERMS OF REFERENCE (ToR)	22
A.	Deta	ailed Scope of Services	22
B.	Sch	edule of payment	27
SECT	ION	4: Bidding Forms	28
A.	For	m TECH 1: Technical Proposal Submission Form (e-Envelope 'B')	28
B.	For	m TECH 2: Technical Experience of Firm (e-Envelope 'B')	29
C.	For	m TECH-3: Team Composition and Task Assignments (e-Envelope 'B')	30
D.	For	m TECH-4: Curriculum Vitae (CV) for Proposed Key Professional (e-Envelope 'B')	31
E. Wo		m TECH-5: Description of Understanding of Scope of Services, Approach, Methodology an/ Activity Schedule for performing the assignment (e-Envelope 'B')	
F.	For	m TECH-6: Staffing Schedule (e-Envelope 'B')	34
G.	For	m TECH-7: Work Schedule/ Activity Schedule (e-Envelope 'B')	35
a	. A	activity Schedule	35
b	o. C	Completion and Submission of Reports/ Deliverables (as per ToR) (e-Envelope 'B')	36
H.	For	m TECH-8: Annual Turnover Certificate	37
I.	For	m TECH-9: Litigation History	38
J.	TEC	CH-10 Documents to be uploaded separately	39
K.	Che	cklist for Technical Proposal (e-Envelope 'B')	40
L.	For	m FIN-1: Financial Proposal Submission Form (e-Envelope 'C')	42
M.	F	orm FIN-2: Breakdown of Staff-Month Cost (All inclusive) (e-Envelope 'C')	43
Section	on 5.	Form of Contract (Draft)	44
5.1	GE	NERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	48
5.2	S	PECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	60

# **SECTION 1: Letter of Invitation (LOI) & Details of Tender**

MMRC/Planning/PLN88/RFP01/2022

16/09/2022

# **Invitation for Appointment of Consultant**

# Sub: <u>Letter of Invitation (LOI) – for Carrying out Real Estate Market Assessment and Financial</u> <u>Feasibility for Properties in vicinity of Metro Line -3</u>

MMRC invites Bids (through e-tendering process) from eligible Bidder(s), who may be a sole proprietorship firm, a partnership firm or a company incorporated under Companies Act 1956/2013 and having registered office in India, for carrying out Real Estate Market Assessment and Financial Feasibility for Properties in vicinity of Metro Line -3.

# A. Background

Mumbai Metro Rail Corporation Ltd (MMRCL) a JV-SPV (50:50) of Government of India (GoI) and Government of Maharashtra (GoM) is implementing Mumbai Metro Line 3 which is a 33.5 km fully underground metro corridor with 26 underground stations and 1 at grade. The project is financed through Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) loan assistance, Equity & Subordinate Debt contributions from GoI and GoM, financial contributions by various other stakeholders. Mumbai Metro Line 3 is a fully underground corridor connecting Mumbai's first business district at Nariman Point with newer business districts at Lower Parel, Bandra Kurla Complex and SEEPZ. The alignment also connects several major transport hubs including the CST, Churchgate and Mumbai Central stations as well as the Mumbai Airport.

Considering the fact that the public transport project like Metro are capital and Maintenance intensive, will not be Financially sustainable only depending on Fare Box Revenues. Ensuring world class commuter services while servicing the JICA loan require significant financial resources. This has necessitated MMRC to look for additional revenue opportunities outside Fare Box. Further the metro policy recently adopted by Govt. of India also stipulated exploitation of various alternate revenue sources & opportunities.

MMRC therefore intends to appoint a consultant to carry out real estate market assessment and financial feasibility for properties in the vicinity of Metro Line -3, advise on transaction framework, prepare bid documents so that MMRC can conduct the necessary bid process. The consultants are also expected to identify prominent real estate developers/investors. The study includes property development at 5 land parcels located along Metro Line-3 alignment. Details of the plots along with Detailed scope of services is given in Section 3 of RFP document.

# B. Eligibility Criteria

Eligibility Criteria for the assignment is given in the Data Sheet of Section 2.

# C. Duration of services

Time duration for the consultancy service will be 3 months, extendable to the period depending upon MMRC's discretion and mutual consensus. The RFP document shall be available for download at the specified tender portal by paying the prescribed Tender Document Fee. As per the prescribed schedule, issue of response to queries and corrigendum, if required, will be issued leading to the submission of the bid documents.

Table 1:Details of RFP

Sr.	Parameter	Details					
No.	1 ar ameter	Details					
1	Tender / Bid No.	MMRC/Planning/ PLN88/RFP01/2022					
2	Department Department	Planning Department					
3	Name of Tender /	Ŭ Î	and and Einemaiol Essaibility				
3		Carrying out Real Estate Market Assessm	<u> </u>				
	Bid	for Properties in vicinity of Metro Line -3					
4	Cost of tender	10,000 /- (INR Five Thousand only), excl	uding GST (Refundable for				
	document	MSME registered firms)					
5	Contact Details	Mr. Swetal Kanwalu, DGM (Town Plann	ing),				
		Planning Dept.					
		8 <sup>th</sup> Floor, Hallmark Business Plaza					
		Sant Dnyaneshwar Nagar, Bandra East, M	Iumbai, Maharashtra 400051				
		Contact No. 022 69061355, 022 69061368					
6	Importation Dates	Milestone	Date				
		Issue of Tender	16.09.2022				
			(12.00 hrs onwards)				
		Submission of queries/clarification	23.09.2022				
		Pre – bid meeting	26.09.2022				
		Total describitions and actions	12.10.2022				
		Last date of bid submission	(15:00 hrs)				
		On a line Forestone A Tradesical Did	12.10.2022				
		Opening Envelope A – Technical Bid	(16:00 hrs)				
		Opening Envelope B – Financial Bid	31.10.2022				
		(Tentative)	(11:00 hrs)				

The RFP document is available for download from website <a href="www.tenderwizard.com/MMRC">www.tenderwizard.com/MMRC</a> from the above-mentioned date. The tenders will be received online on MMRCL E-Tendering portal (www.tenderwizard.com/MMRCL) and will be opened as per scheduled date and time as above.

Date: 16/09/2022 Place: Mumbai

Yours faithfully,
Sd(R. Ramana)
Executive Director (Planning)

# For further details, if required, you may contact:

# **Contact Details:**

Mr. Swetal Kanwalu, DGM (Town Planning),

Planning Dept.

8<sup>th</sup> Floor, Hallmark Business Plaza

Sant Dnyaneshwar Nagar, Bandra East, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400051

Contact No. 022 69061355, 022 69061368

E-mail id: swetal.kanwalu@mmrcl.com

MMRC reserves the right to reject any/all of the proposals without assigning any reason thereof.

# D. Deemed Knowledge and Disclaimer

MMRC shall receive Bids pursuant to this RFP document, in accordance with the terms set forth herein as modified, altered, amended and clarified from time to time by MMRC. Bidders shall submit bids in accordance with such terms on or before the Proposal Due Date. The participating Bidders are expected to visit the Project site to examine its precincts and the surroundings at the Bidder's own expenses and ascertain on its own responsibility, information, technical data, traffic data, market study, etc. including actual condition of existing services.

The Bidder shall be deemed to have inspected the Project Site and be aware of the existing buildings, constructions, structures, installations etc. existing in the Project site and shall not claim for any change on the Project site after submitting its Bid. The Bidder hereby admits, agrees and acknowledges that MMRC has not made any representation to the Bidder or given any warranty of any nature whatsoever in respect of the Project Site including in respect of its usefulness, utility etc. or the fulfilment of criteria or conditions for obtaining Applicable Permits by the Bidder for implementing the Project.

The Bidder shall be fully and exclusively responsible for, and shall bear the financial, technical, commercial, legal and other risks in relation to the development of the assets regardless of whatever risks, contingencies, circumstances and/or hazards may be encountered (foreseen or unforeseen) including underground utilities and notwithstanding any change(s) in any of such risks, contingencies, circumstances and/or hazards on exceptional grounds or otherwise and whether foreseen or unforeseen and the Bidder shall not have any right whether express or implied to bring any claim against, or to recover any compensation or other amount from MMRC in respect of the Project other than for those matters in respect of which express provision is made in the Agreement.

The competent authority reserves the right to reject any or all of the tender offers, without assigning any reason thereof. Validity period of the offer of the tender will be 180 days from the date of opening of the financial bid of the e-tender. If there is any amendment in the tender the same shall be updated on the web portal.

# E. Guidelines for E-Tendering

All documents related to this bid document are available on the MMRC e-tendering portal www.tenderwizard.com/MMRC, without registration. All bidders must note that this being E-tender, bids received only through online on E-tendering portal www.tenderwizard.com/MMRC shall be considered as an offer. Any bid submitted in paper form will not be received and opened and shall be summarily rejected. To participate, applicant / bidders is/are required to register and bid using following steps.

# **Step 1: Registration of Applicants/Bidders**

- Go to website: www.tenderwizard.com/MMRC.
- Click on "Register" button.
- Fill in the desired User ID, Company Details by your own.
- Vendor in possession of DSC Class III may insert Digital Signature Certificate token in computer's USB drive, and click on "Update Digital Signing Certificate Serial No. From USB token". A new PKI based "Signer Certificate" window will open. Browse your Signer Certificate, enter token password and click on Register.
- For those without DSC, it is mandatory to apply for the DSC.
- Do not enter special character(s) in any field except "Email Address", "Website (URL)" and "Alternative Email Address".
- Then click on "Create profile".
- You will be forwarded to "Document Upload" screen. Upload documents as specified in previous page. After uploading is completed, click on "Finish Upload".
- You will be forwarded to Payment screen. Make registration payment.
- The User ID and system generated password with payment confirmation will appear on the next screen which can be printed for future reference.
- For enabling the User ID, forward the registration acknowledgement to twhelpdesk358@gmail.com along with a Request Letter.

• Download the format for Request letter from Home page (available under Click to view Latest Circulars / Format). Letter should be duly signed with rubber stamp.

# Step 2: Apply digital signature (known as "digital signature certificate"): following registration a token (data card) will be issued to the registered company.

- Applying Class III Digital Signature Certificate: (token issued upon registration)
- The applicant/bidder is required to apply for a class III Digital Signature Certificate (DSC). Digital Signature Certificate which is obtainable from either the authorized agencies of CCA (Controller of Certifying Authorities in India www.cca.gov.in).

# Procedure for submission of E-tender by bidder:

- Interested bidders who wish to participate should visit website http://www.tenderwizard.com/MMRC which is the ONLY website for bidding their offer. Further, the procedure is as follows:
- Register your company in website www.tenderwizard.com/MMRC for obtaining a Login ID and Password (after paying necessary registration charges). This is one-time annual payment and applicable for bidding other tenders also.
- Using the login ID, password and digital signature, enter the tender portal to purchase the tender document.
- Pay processing fees/tender cost through e-payment gateway.
- With the payment of tender document cost, the bidder can download the 'Technical bid' [in prescribed/Microsoft Excel (.xls) format] and 'price bid' [in prescribed/Microsoft Excel (.xls) format] by clicking on the link "Show Form".
- Download the **Technical bid** and **Price bid** and save them without changing the file name. Fill up your quotations, save them. Then upload the Technical bid and Price bid in appropriate links.
- Attach supporting documents first in "Document Library". Then attach them by selecting in particular tender.
- On Submission of tender a system generated "Acknowledgement Copy" of tender submission will be received.
- Bidder can revise/change quoted rates any time before closing date & time.
- Bidder must submit the offer before the online closing date & time. The website will automatically stop accepting the offer after online closing date and time.
- Bidder manual & system requirement is available on website www.tenderwizard.com/MMRC for necessary help.
- All Bids must be uploaded on-line on E-Tendering portal. www.tenderwizard.com/MMRC before the time and date specified in the pre-qualification Data sheet / Bid Data sheet.
- Being e-tenders the bidders will not be able to upload bids after the designated time of bid submission.
- The Applicants/Bidders are advised to regularly visit the e-tendering portal www.tenderwizard.com/MMRC for updates.
- N.B: Bidders are requested to refer to the Vendor's manual by downloading the Vendor's Manual by visiting www.tenderwizard.com/MMRC and clicking on "Help Manuals".

Bidder may contact ITI representative at 08951944383 & helpdesk at 08040482100 <a href="mailto:emailto

Bidder/ Agencies are advised to study this bid document carefully before submitting their proposals in response to the NIT. Submission of a proposal in response to this notice shall be deemed to have been done after careful study and examination of this document with full understanding of its terms, conditions and implications. Prospective bidders are advised to check the minimum qualification criteria before participating in the bidding process. This Bid Document is not transferable and the name of the bidder who purchases and submits the same bid shall be unchanged."

# **SECTION 2: Instructions to Consultants and Data Sheet A. Instructions to Consultants (ITC)**

# 1. Definitions

- 1.1 "Affiliate(s)" means an individual or an entity that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with the Consultant.
- 1.2 "Applicable Law" means the laws and any other instruments having the force of law in the Client's country, or in such other country as may be specified in the Data Sheet, as they may be issued and in force from time to time.
- 1.3 "Client" means "MMRC" or "Authority" that signs the Contract for the Services with the selected Consultant.
- 1.4 "Consultant" means a legally-established professional consulting firm or an entity that may provide or provides the Services to the Client under the Contract.
- 1.5 "Contract" means a legally binding written agreement signed between the Client and the Consultant and includes all the attached documents listed in its Clause 1 (the General Conditions of Contract (GCC), the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC), and the Appendices).
- 1.6 "Data Sheet" means an integral part of the Instructions to Consultants (ITC) Section 2 that is used to reflect specific country and assignment conditions to supplement, but not to over-write, the provisions of the ITC.
- 1.7 "Day" means calendar day;
- 1.8 "Professionals" means, collectively, Key Professionals, Support Professionals, support staff, or any other personnel of the Consultant or Joint Venture member(s).
- 1.9 "Government" means the Government of Maharashtra/Government of India
- 1.10 "Joint Venture (JV) or Consortium" means an association with or without a legal personality distinct from that of its members, of more than one Consultant where one member has the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV, and where the members of the JV are jointly and severally liable to the Client for the performance of the Contract.
- 1.11 "Key Professional(s)" means an individual professional whose skills, qualifications, knowledge and experience are critical to the performance of the Services under the Contract and whose CV is taken into account in the technical evaluation of the Consultant's proposal.
- 1.12 "Foreign Personnel" means such professionals and support staff who at the time of being so provided had their domicile outside the India.
- 1.13 "Local Personnel" means such professionals and support staff who at the time of being so provided had their domicile inside India;
- 1.14 "ITC" (this Section 2 of the RFP) mean the Instructions to Consultants that provides the Consultants with all information needed to prepare their Proposals.
- 1.15 "LOI" (this Section 1 of the RFP) means the Letter of Invitation being addressed by the Client to the Consultants.
- 1.16 "Support Professional(s)" means an individual professional provided by the Consultant and who is assigned to perform the Services or any part thereof under the Contract and whose CVs are not evaluated individually.
- 1.17 "Proposal" means the Technical Proposal and the Financial Proposal of the Consultant.
- 1.18 "RFP" means the Request for Proposals to be prepared by the Client for the selection of Consultants.
- 1.19 "Services" means the work to be performed by the Consultant pursuant to the Contract.
- 1.20 "TOR" (this Section 5 of the RFP) means the Terms of Reference that explain the objectives, scope of work, activities, and tasks to be performed, respective responsibilities of the Client and the Consultant, and expected results and deliverables of the assignment.

- 1.21 "Technical Advisory Committee" means a committee constituted by the Authority for the purpose of technical guidance to the Consultants and monitoring of the study
- 1.22 "INR" means Indian Rupee (s).
- 1.23 QCBS-Quality- and Cost-Based Selection (QCBS)

# 2. Introduction

- 2.1 MMRC intends to select an individual firm ("the Consultant") in accordance with the method of selection specified in Data Sheet.
- 2.2 The Consultants are invited to submit a Technical Proposal and a Financial Proposal, as specified in the Data Sheet, for consulting services required for the assignment named in the Data Sheet. The proposal will be the basis for negotiations (for both technical & financials) and ultimately for a signing contract with the selected Consultant.
- 2.3 Consultants should familiarize themselves with local conditions and take into account in preparing their proposals. To obtain first-hand information on the assignment and local conditions. Consultants are advised to attend pre-bid meeting specified in the Data Sheet.
- 2.4 MMRC will timely provide at no cost to the Consultants, the inputs, relevant project data and reports required for the preparation of the consultants Proposal as specified in the Data Sheet.
- 2.5 The Consultant shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its Proposal, subsequent contract negotiations and the Client shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the selection process. The Client is not bound to accept any proposal and reserves the right to annul the selection process at any time prior to Contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to the Consultant.

# 3. Conflict of Interest

- 3.1 The Consultant has an obligation to disclose to the Client any situation of actual or potential conflict that impacts its capacity to serve the best interest of its Client. Failure to disclose such situations may lead to the disqualification of the Consultant or the termination of its Contract.
- 3.2 Without limitation on the generality of the foregoing, and unless stated otherwise in the Data Sheet, the Consultant shall not be hired under the circumstances set forth below:
- 3.3 Conflict between consulting activities and procurement of goods, works or non-consulting services: A firm that has been engaged by MMRC to provide goods, works or services other than consulting services for a project, and any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from providing consulting services related to those goods, works or services. Conversely, a firm hired to provide consulting services for the preparation or implementation of a project, and any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from subsequently providing goods or works or services other than consulting services resulting from or directly related to the firm's consulting services for such preparation or implementation. For the purpose of this paragraph, services other than consulting services are defined as those leading to a physical output, for example surveys, exploratory drilling, aerial photography, and satellite imagery.
- 3.4 Conflict among consulting assignments: A Consultant (including its Personnel) shall not be hired for any assignment that, by its nature, may be in conflict with another assignment of the Consultant to be executed for the same or for another Employer. For example, a Consultant hired to prepare engineering design for an infrastructure project shall not be engaged to prepare an independent environmental assessment for the same project, and a Consultant assisting an Employer in the privatization of public assets shall not purchase, nor advice purchasers of, such assets. Similarly, a Consultant hired to prepare Terms of Reference for an assignment should not be hired for the assignment in question. The hired consultant for the present assignment shall not work with any other firm or developer or agency on the same assignment nor would advise on such matters to any other firm except MMRC

- 3.5 Relationship with the client's staff: A Consultant (including its Professionals) that has a business or family relationship with a member of MMRC 's staff who is directly or indirectly involved in any part of (i) the preparation of the Terms of Reference of the assignment, (ii) the selection process for such assignment, may not be awarded a Contract, unless the conflict stemming from this relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to the MMRC throughout the selection process and the execution of the Contract.
- 3.6 No agency or current employees of MMRC shall work as consultants under their own departments. Recruiting former employees of MMRC and Government to work for their former ministries, departments or agencies is acceptable provided no conflict of interest exists. When the Consultant nominates any government employee as a professional in their technical proposal, such professional must have written certification from their government or employer confirming that they are on leave without pay from their official position and allowed to work full-time outside of their previous official position. Such certification shall be provided to MMRC by the Consultant as part of his technical proposal.

# 4. Unfair Competitive Advantage

If a Consultant could derive a competitive advantage from MMRC after having provided consulting services related to the assignment in question, MMRC shall make available to all Consultants together with this RFP all information that would in that respect give such Consultant any competitive advantage over competing Consultants.

# 5. Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

- 5.1 The consultant's personnel observe the highest standard of ethics during the selection and execution of such contracts and must not indulge in any corrupt /fraudulent practice defined here under:
  - a) "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything likely to influence improperly the actions of another party<sup>1</sup>
  - b) "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to likely mislead, a party to obtain financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation<sup>2</sup>;
  - c) "collusive practices" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party<sup>3</sup>;
  - d) "coercive practices" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party<sup>4</sup>;
    - <sup>1</sup> "Another party" refers to a public official acting in relation to the selection process or contract execution. In this context "public official" includes employees of other organisations taking or reviewing selection decisions.
    - <sup>2</sup> "party" refers to a public official; the terms "benefit" and "obligation" relate to the selection process or contract execution; and the "act or omission" is intended to influence the selection process or contract execution.
    - <sup>3</sup> "Parties" refers to participants in the procurement or selection process (including public officials) attempting to establish contract prices at artificial, non-competitive levels.
    - <sup>4</sup> "Party" refers to a participant in the selection process or contract execution.
  - e) "obstructive practice" is; Deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators to materially impede a MMRC investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive, or collusive practice;

and/or threatening, harassing, or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation.

- 5.2 MMRC will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the consultant recommended for award has, directly or through an agent, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- 5.3 Consultants, personnel shall not be under a declaration of ineligibility for aforesaid (Para 5.1) corrupt and fraudulent practices. Furthermore, the Consultants shall be aware of the provisions on fraud and corruption stated in the specific clauses in the General Conditions of Contract.

# 6. Eligible Assignments

The eligibility criteria for the firm are detailed out in the Data Sheet.

### 7. Award of Contract

- 7.1 Evaluation of Bids will be based on Quality-cum-Cost-Based Selection (QCBS)
- 7.2 Financial proposal shall be opened and combined technical and financial score shall be determined. Firm having the highest combined technical and financial score will be awarded the package after negotiations.

# 8. Only One Proposal

- 8.1 The Proposal shall comprise the documents and forms listed in the Data Sheet.
- 8.2 Consultants may submit only one proposal. If a Consultant submits or participates in more than one proposal, each of the proposals or consultants shall be disqualified.
- 8.3 In preparing the Proposal, the Consultant is expected to examine the RFP in detail. Material deficiencies in providing the information requested in the RFP may result in rejection of the Proposal.

# 9. Proposal Submission

- 9.1 The intending bidders must be registered on e-tendering portal of MMRCL www.tenderwizard.com/MMRCL. Those who are not registered on the e-tendering portal shall be required to get registered beforehand. If needed they can be imparted training on 'online tendering process'. After registration, the bidder will get user id and password. On login, bidder can participate in tendering process and can witness various activities of the process.
- 9.2 Details of the e-tender process are described in this document section.
- 9.3 Tender submissions will be made online after uploading the mandatory scanned documents. Bid shall be submitted online on the e-tendering portal in 'three electronic envelopes system' within prescribed schedule.
  - 9.3.1 e-Envelope 'A' (Cost of Tender Document): Consultant should generate, and upload scanned copies of Receipt for Cost of Tender Document.
  - 9.3.2 e-Envelope 'B' (Technical bid): Consultant shall upload scanned copies of Technical Document as per the requirements of the Tender Documents.
  - 9.3.3 e-Envelope 'C' (Financial bid): Consultant shall quote his financial offer in the Financial Proposal at the prescribed space in e-Envelope "C".
- 9.4 Under "Price Bid- Covering Letter" Upload the digitally signed copy of the Quotation on Company's Letter head under the template "Price Bid- Covering Letter". Consultant shall upload signed and stamped scanned copy of Financial Proposal.
- 9.5 Payment Procedure for Cost of Tender Document: Tender document and supporting documents can be downloaded for reference purpose from the e-Tendering Portal of MMRCL during the period mentioned in the tender notice. Interested Consultants have to make online payment using online payment gateway during bid preparation i.e. Debit Card/Credit Card/Net-Banking. Fee receipt can be system generated during bid preparation by the Consultant.

9.6 Submission of Tenders shall be closed on e-tendering portal of MMRCL on the date & time of submission prescribed in Data Sheet after which no tender shall be accepted. It shall be the responsibility of the Consultant / bidder to ensure that his tender is submitted online on e-tendering portal of MMRCL before the deadline of submission. MMRCL will not in any way be responsible for non-receipt of tender documents due to any delay and/or loss etc.

# 10. Proposal Validity

- 10.1 The Data Sheet indicates how long Consultants' Proposals must remain valid after the submission date. During this period of 6 months from the date of opening of the financial bid of the tender, Consultants shall maintain the availability of Professional staff nominated in the Proposal. MMRC will make its best effort to complete negotiations within this period.
- 10.2 During this period, the Consultant shall maintain its original Proposal without any change, including the availability of the Key Professionals, the proposed rates and the total price.

# 11. Extension of Validity Period

- 11.1 The Client will make its best effort to complete the negotiations within the proposal's validity period. However, should the need arise, the Client may request, in writing, all bidders who submitted Proposals prior to the submission deadline to extend the Proposals' validity.
- 11.2 If the bidder agrees to extend the validity of its Proposal, it shall be done without any change in the original Proposal and with the confirmation of the availability of the Key Professionals.
- 11.3 The bidder has the right to refuse to extend the validity of its Proposal in which case such Proposal will not be further evaluated.

### 12. Sub-Contracting

The Consultant shall not subcontract any services other than topographic and geotechnical surveys

### 13. Clarification and Amendment of RFP Documents

- 13.1 The bidder may request a clarification of any part of the RFP during the pre-bid meeting. Any request for clarification must be sent in writing, or by standard electronic means, to the Client's address indicated in the Data Sheet. The Client will respond in writing, or by standard electronic means to all bidders. If the Client deem it necessary to amend the RFP as a result of a clarification, it shall do so following the procedure described below:
  - a) At any time before the proposal submission deadline, the Client may amend the RFP by issuing an amendment in writing or by standard electronic means. The amendment shall be sent to all bidders and will be binding on them. The bidders shall acknowledge receipt of all amendments in writing.
  - b) If the amendment is substantial, the Client may extend the proposal submission deadline to give the bidders reasonable time to take an amendment into account in their Proposals.
- 13.2 The bidder may submit a modified Proposal or a modification to any part of it at any time prior to the proposal submission deadline. No modifications to the Technical or Financial Proposal shall be accepted after the deadline.

# 14. Preparation of Proposals – Specific Considerations

While preparing the Proposal, the bidder must give particular attention to the following:

- a) The Client may indicate in the Data Sheet the estimated Key Professional's time input (expressed in man-month). This estimate is indicative, and the Proposal shall be based on the bidder's own estimates for the same.
- b) Proposed Professional staff must have at least the experience indicated in the Data Sheet, preferably under conditions like those prevailing in the country of the assignment.

- c) Bidder shall not propose alternative Key Professionals. Only one CV shall be submitted for each Key Professional position. CVs should be signed by the concerned key professionals and countersigned by the bidder. Failure to comply with this requirement will make the Proposal non-responsive.
- d) It is desirable that the majority of the key professional staff proposed be the permanent employees of the firm or have an extended and stable working relation with it.

# 15. Language

Documents to be issued by the Consultants as part of this assignment must be in the English language. It is desirable that the firm's personnel have a working knowledge of the Client's national/local language.

# 16. Technical Proposal Format and Content

- 16.1 The Technical Proposal shall not include any financial information. A Technical Proposal containing material financial information shall be declared non-responsive and rejected.
- 16.2 Bidders are required to submit a Full Technical Proposal. The Technical Proposal shall provide the information indicated in the following paras from (a) to (g) using the attached Standard Forms (Section 4).
  - a) A brief description of the Bidders' organisation and an outline of recent experience on assignments under Technical experience criteria of the firm are required in Form TECH-2. For each assignment, the outline should indicate the names of Professional Key staff participated, duration of the assignment, contract amount, and Consultant's involvement. Information should be provided only for those assignments for which the Consultant was legally contracted by the Employer as a corporation venture. Assignments completed by individual Professional staff working privately or through other consulting firms cannot be claimed as the experience of the Consultant, or that of the Consultant's associates, but can be claimed by the Professional staff themselves in their CVs. Consultants should be prepared to substantiate the claimed experience if so, requested by MMRC. Supporting documents eg. Copy of Contract/work orders indicating the details of previous assignment, client etc. along with client certificates should be submitted. In case the firm has done assignments on non-disclosure agreements, the Competent Authority of the consulting firm shall self-certify accordingly.
  - b) The list of the proposed Professional staff team by area of expertise, the position that would be assigned to each staff team member, and their tasks along with CVs (Form TECH-3 & TECH-4)
  - c) In case of fulltime employee proposed as key professional, CV should be signed by authorized signatory of the firm and key professional. Scanned copies of CVs signed by the respective personnel will be accepted. In case of a person not an employee of the bidding firm, an undertaking from the person stating his/her acceptance to work on behalf of the bidding firm for this study should be submitted. Key information should include number of years working for the firm/entity, and degree of responsibility held in various assignments during the previous years as given in the Data sheet.
  - d) A description of the approach, methodology work plan and transfer of knowledge and training for performing the assignment covering the following subjects: technical approach and methodology, work plan, and organization and staffing schedule. Guidance on the content of this section of the Technical Proposals is provided under Form TECH-5 of Section 3. Estimates of the total staff input needed to carry out the assignment (Form TECH-6 of Section 4) supported by bar chart diagrams showing the time proposed for each professional staff team member. The work plan should be consistent with the Work Schedule (Form TECH-7 of Section 4) which will show in the form of a bar chart the timing proposed for each activity.

**Note:** MMRC may verify experience of key personnel/expert with previous employer.

g) A detailed description of the proposed methodology and staffing

# 17. Financial Proposals

- 17.1 The Financial proposal should be a Lump-sum proposal including GST and shall be prepared using the attached Forms (Form FIN 1, 2) specified in Section 4.
- 17.2 The Financial proposal should be submitted clearly indicating the total cost of the Consultancy in both figures and words, in Indian Rupees, and signed by the Applicant's Authorized Representative.
- 17.3 The Financial Proposal shall take into account all expenses associated with the assignment. These shall normally cover remuneration for all the Key Professionals, Support Professionals, Support Staff, accommodation, air fare/ train fare, communication costs, local transportation costs, equipment, printing of documents, surveys/ investigations (except Geotechnical Investigation\*), etc. The rates for individual Key Professional & total amount indicated in the Financial Proposal shall be without any condition attached or subject to any assumption and shall be final and binding. In case any assumption or condition is indicated in the Financial Proposal, it shall be considered non-responsive and liable to be rejected.

# 18. Taxes, Currency of Proposal & Payment

- 18.1 The Financial Proposal shall take into account all the tax liabilities including GST. Further, all payments shall be subject to deduction of taxes at source as per Applicable Laws.
- 18.2 The bidder shall express the price for its Services in the Indian Rupees (INR) only, no foreign currency fluctuation will be paid.
- 18.3 Payment under the Contract shall be made in the INR only.
- 18.4 Payments shall be made based on the deliverables as mentioned in the Payment Schedule in Section 3: Terms of Reference (TOR).
- 18.5 Changes in Tax rates: Payment shall be made as per current applicable rate of GST.

# 19. Submission, Sealing, and Marking of Proposals

- 19.1 Tender submissions will be made online after uploading the mandatory scanned documents. Bid shall be submitted online on the e-tendering portal in 'three electronic envelopes system' within prescribed schedule.
- 19.2 The bidder shall submit their tender on-line on e-tendering website www.tenderwizard.com/MMRCL. It shall be the responsibility of the Consultant / bidder to ensure that his tender is submitted on e-tendering website of MMRCL before the deadline of submission prescribed in Data Sheet.
- 19.3 'Tender Document Fee' after due date and time shall not be accepted and online tenders of such bidders shall be rejected summarily.
- 19.4 MMRCL will not be responsible for delay, loss or non-receipt of 'Tender Document Fee'.
- 19.5 MMRCL may, at their discretion, extend the deadline for submission of tenders by issuing an amendment, in which case all rights and obligations of the Employer and the Bidder previously subject to the original deadline will thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.

### 20. Confidentiality

20.1 From the time the Proposals are opened to the time the Contract is awarded, the bidder should not contact the Client on any matter related to its Technical and/or Financial Proposal. Information relating to the evaluation of Proposals and award recommendations shall not be disclosed to the Bidders who submitted the Proposals or to any other party not officially concerned with the process, until the Contract award.

- 20.2 Any attempt by bidder or anyone on behalf of the bidder to influence improperly the Client in the evaluation of the Proposals or Contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its Proposal.
- 20.3 Notwithstanding the above provisions, from the time of the Proposals' opening to the time of Contract award, if a bidder wishes to contact the Client on any matter related to the selection process, it should do so only in writing.

# 21. Opening of Technical Proposals

- 21.1 The Client's evaluation/Tender opening committee shall conduct the opening of the Technical Proposals in the presence of the bidders' authorized representatives who choose to attend (in person through Microsoft teams). The opening date, time are stated in the Data Sheet. Bidders have to submit their interest to attend the technical bid opening at least a day before date of opening of Technical Bid. The link shall be shared with the interested bidders. The envelopes with the Financial Proposal shall remain sealed and shall be securely stored until they are opened in accordance with Clause 24 of the ITC.
- 21.2 At the opening of the Technical Proposals the following shall be read out: (i) the name and the country of the Consultant or, in case of a Joint Venture, the name of the Joint Venture, the name of the lead member and the names and the countries of both members; (ii) any other information deemed appropriate or as indicated in the Data Sheet.

# 22. Proposal Evaluation

- 22.1 Subject to provision of Clause 16.1 of the ITC, the evaluators of the Technical Proposals shall have no access to the Financial Proposals until the technical evaluation is concluded.
- 22.2 The Consultant is not permitted to alter or modify its Proposal in any way after the proposal submission deadline except as permitted under Clause 11.3 of this ITC. While evaluating the Proposals, the Client will conduct the evaluation solely on the basis of the submitted Technical and Financial Proposals.

# 23. Evaluation of Technical Proposals

- 23.1 Prior to evaluation of Proposals MMRC's appointed authority/Evaluation Committee will determine whether each proposal is responsive to the requirements of the RFP. MMRC may, at its sole discretion, reject any proposal that is not responsive hereunder. A proposal shall be considered responsive only if;
  - a) The technical proposal is received in the form specified Section-4 of RFP.
  - b) It is received by the due date including any extension thereof pursuant to Clause 10 of ITC
  - c) It is signed and submitted as stipulated in clause 16 of ITC.
  - d) It is accompanied by a valid Power of Attorney pursuant to ITC.
  - e) It contains all the information (complete in all respect) as required in RFP.
  - f) It does not contain any condition
- 23.2 The evaluation committee shall evaluate the Technical Proposals on the basis of their responsiveness to the Terms of Reference, applying the evaluation criteria, sub-criteria, and point system specified in the Data Sheet under QCBS. Each responsive Proposal will be given a technical score (St). A Proposal shall be rejected at this stage if it does not respond to important aspects of the RFP, and particularly the Terms of Reference or if it fails to achieve the minimum technical score indicated in the Data Sheet.
- 23.3 In course of evaluation of technical proposals, Consultant shall be called for Presentation on understanding of project in front of MMRCL Technical Evaluation Committee. The presentation should be attended by Firms authorized representative and at least one of the Proposed Key Professional. Date and time for Presentation will be informed separately.

23.4 MMRCL shall not be required to provide any explanation or justification in respect of technical evaluation of proposal. The decision of evaluation committee will be final and will be binding on all prospective bidders.

# 24. Public Opening and Evaluation of Financial Proposals -QCBS (For a. Quality- and Cost- Based Selection) (80:20)

- 24.1 After the technical evaluation is completed MMRC shall notify in writing to bidders that have secured the minimum qualifying score, the date, time and link for Microsoft Teams for opening the Financial Proposals. Bidders' attendance at the opening of Financial Proposals is optional.
- 24.2 Those bidders who failed to qualify at the Technical Qualification stage, shall be informed the technical scores and shall be notified the minimum qualifying score and considered non-responsive to the RFP and TOR. Their Financial Proposals will be returned unopened after completing the selection process.
- 24.3 Financial Proposals shall be opened publicly in the presence of the bidders' representatives who choose to attend. The name of the bidders and the technical scores shall be read aloud. The Financial Proposal of the bidders who meet the minimum qualifying score will then be inspected to confirm that they have remained sealed and unopened. These Financial Proposals shall be then opened, and the total prices read aloud and recorded.
- 24.4 In case of discrepancy between the Technical and Financial Proposals in indicating quantities of input, the Technical Proposal prevails.
- 24.5 In addition to the above, as indicated under para. 24.4, activities and items described in the Technical Proposal but not priced in the financial proposal, shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other activities.
- 24.6 In the case of QCBS, the total score is calculated by weighing the technical and financial scores and adding them as per the formula and instructions in the Data Sheet also as detailed under para 24.7.
- 24.7 The lowest evaluated Financial Proposal (Fm) will be given the maximum financial score (Sf) of 100 points. The financial scores (Sf) of the other Financial Proposals will be computed as indicated in the Data Sheet. Proposals will be ranked according to their combined technical (St) and financial (Sf) scores using the weights (T = the weight given to the Technical Proposal; P = the weight given to the Financial Proposal; T + P = 1) indicated in the Data Sheet: S = St x T + Sf x P. The firm achieving the highest combined technical and financial score will be invited for negotiations.

# 25. Negotiations & Award

Negotiations will be held at the address indicated in the Data Sheet with regard to the weaknesses if any in the selected proposal. The invited bidder will, as a pre-requisite for attendance at the negotiations, confirm availability of all Professional staff. Failure in satisfying such requirements may result in MMRC proceeding to negotiate with the next- ranked Consultant. Representatives conducting negotiations on behalf of the bidder must have written authority to negotiate and conclude a Contract.

# 26. Technical negotiations

26.1 Negotiations will include a discussion of the Technical Proposal, the proposed technical approach and methodology, work plan, and organisation and staffing, & Knowledge transfer and training and any suggestions made by the Consultant to improve the Terms of Reference. MMRC and the Consultant will finalise the Terms of Reference, staffing schedule, work schedule, logistics, and reporting. These documents will then be incorporated in the Contract as "Description of Services". Special attention will be paid to clearly defining the inputs and facilities required from MMRC to ensure satisfactory implementation of the assignment. MMRC shall prepare minutes of negotiations which will be signed by MMRC and the Consultant.

26.2 MMRC may negotiate a Contract based on the Professional staff named in the Proposal. Before contract negotiations, MMRC will require assurances that the Professional staff will be available. MMRC will not consider substitutions during contract negotiations. If this is not the case and if it is established that Professional staff were offered in the proposal without confirming their availability, this shall result in the rejection of the Consultant's Proposal and the Client proceeding to negotiate the Contract with the next-ranked bidder.

# 27. Availability of Key Professional staff/experts

- 27.1 If it is established that any of the Key Professionals is included in the Proposal without his/her confirmation, such Proposal shall be disqualified and rejected for further evaluation with respect to Clause 5 of this ITC.
- 27.2 Replacements of Key Personnel is not desirable, and consultants shall refrain from doing so in any circumstances except death and medical incapacitation. If Key Personnel or replacements of equal or better qualifications are not deployed, it will be considered as non-deployment of key personnel and no payment shall be admissible.
- 27.3 The consultant shall not change the Key Personnel proposed for the work without any valid reasons acceptable to the Client. A penalty of Rs. 25,000/- will also be levied if the consultant changes the Key Personnel proposed without valid reasons or without prior information to the client.

# 28. Financial negotiations

Staff month rate negotiations shall not take place, except when the offered Key Professionals and support professionals' remuneration rates are much higher than the typically charged rates by consultants in similar contracts. In such case, the Client may ask for clarifications and, if the fees are very high, ask to change the rates.

# 29. Conclusion of the negotiations

Negotiations will conclude with a review of the draft Contract. To complete negotiations MMRC and the Consultant will initial the agreed Contract. If negotiations fail, MMRC will invite the Consultant whose Proposal received the second highest score to negotiate a Contract.

# 30. Award of Contract

- 30.1 After completing negotiations, MMRC shall award the Contract to the selected Consultant.
- 30.2 The Consultant is expected to commence the assignment on the date and at the location specified in the Data Sheet or such other date as may be mutually agreed.
- 30.3 If the Consultant fails to either sign the Agreement as specified in Clause 30.1 or commence the assignment as specified in Clause 30.2, the Authority may invite the bidder whose proposal received the second highest score to negotiate a Contract.

# **B. DATA SHEET**

Sr. No.	ITC Clause Referen ce	Particulars	
1	2.1	Name of the Client: Mumbai Metro Rail Corporation Ltd. (MMRCL) Method of selection: Quality and Cost Based Selection (QCBS).	
2	2.2	Financial Proposal to be submitted together with Technical Proposal: <i>Yes</i> Name of the assignment is: "Carrying out Real Estate Market Assessment and Financial Feasibility for Properties in vicinity of Metro Line -3"	
3	6 a	Eligibility Criteria for the firm:	
		1. GENERAL CONDITIONS:	
		JV/ Consortium shall not be allowed. The firm should have a minimum of five years of continuous existence.	
		(Necessary supporting documents to be submitted as mentioned in TECH 10)	
		2. <u>TURNOVER CRITERIA</u>	
		For a bidder, average annual turnover for at least 2 financial years out of last 5 financial years (FY 2017-18, 18-19, 19-20, 20-21, 21-22) should not be less than <b>Rs.</b> 10.0 Cr.	
		(Please refer TECH 8: Annual Turnover Certificate, Section 4: Bidding Forms for submission to fulfil above turnover criteria.)	
		3. CRITERIA FOR TECHNICAL EXPERIENCE OF FIRMS (Submission through TECH-2):	
		The bidder must fulfil project experience undertaken as below:  a. The bidder should have experience of Real Estate Advisory/ Feasibility for not less than 3 projects (Residential/ Commercial/ Retail/ Hospitality/ Mixed Use) with minimum salable BUA of 3 lac sq.ft. in each project in the last 5 FY (2017-18, 18-19, 19-20, 20-21, 21-22).	
		b. The bidder should have experience of Real Estate Advisory/ Feasibility for at least 1 project (Residential/ Commercial/ Retail/ Hospitality/ Mixed Use) in Mumbai with minimum salable BUA of 3 lac sq.ft. in the last 5 FY (2017-18, 18-19, 19-20, 20-21, 21-22).	
c. The bidde for at leas Govt. enti			
		Note:	
		i. All assignments shall be supported by a valid client completion/appreciation certificate as stated in Form TECH-2, stating salable built-up area & location. Also, necessary document to establish successful transaction based on advisory services by the bidder should be submitted. In the absence of such documentary proof, the assignment shall not be considered eligible for evaluation. The above information shall be submitted as part of Technical	

Sr. No.	ITC Clause Referen ce	Particulars					
			Proposal (	e-envelope B- Form TECH-2	2)		
		ii.	Evaluation	of Technical Experience Ci	riteria is mentioned at ITC	23.2.	
4	16	1. (	Criteria for 1	Key professionals:			
				mber man-months for key should be supported by adec			
		<ul> <li>The Consultant shall form a multi-disciplinary team (the "Consultancy Team") for undertaking this assignment. The following Key Professionals whose experience is briefly described herein would be considered for evaluation. The CVs of the Key Professionals should highlight the relevant experience to be considered for the eligibility and evaluation.</li> <li>General Conditions to be fulfilled by Key Staff: <ol> <li>Age of the key professionals should not be greater than 60 years.</li> <li>50% of the proposed key staff should be the employee of the lead company.</li> <li>Both the CVs of key professionals should be signed by authorized signatory and key professional.</li> <li>The details of qualifications and technical experience for each Key</li> </ol> </li> </ul>					
				al are given below:	on and Commetency		
		S.	<u>K</u>	ey Professional Qualification	on and Competency	Total	
		No No	Personne 1	Qualification	Experience	Position s	
		1	Real Estate Expert	Bachelor in Engineering/ Architecture or equivalent or MBA from Institute of Repute	Around 15 years of Industry Experience in Real Estate Consulting	1	
		2	Financial Expert	Bachelor in Engineering/ Architecture/ Commerce or equivalent and MBA from Institute of Repute/ Chartered Accountant/ CFA /Post Graduation in Project Financing	Around 12 years of Industry Experience in Real Estate Consulting	1	
		<ul> <li>Note:</li> <li>a. Evaluation of Key Professionals is mentioned at ITC 23.2.</li> <li>b. The requirement of Key expertise given above is must. The consultant may include any expert and adjust the man months associated with the key personnel; however, the overall man-months for the project shall not be changed while preparing their financial proposal. The proposed team should be available in Mumbai for the duration assigned to them.</li> </ul>					
5	23.2	Eval		a: QCBS (Quality & Cost Ba			
		Criteria, sub-criteria, and point system for the evaluation of Full Technical Proposals are:					
		1		ATION UNDER TECHNIC Submission through TECH-2			
				eligible assignments claime completion certificate provide		been	

Sr. No.	ITC Clause	Parti	culars					
	Referen							
	ce							
		Note:	Evaluation under ITC Clause 6 would be done based on the numb	er and				
			ty of the assignments completed. Bidder may submit not more the	nan 10				
		assigi	nments that best demonstrate firm's capability.					
		C		1				
		Sr. No.	Criteria	Points				
		1	Assignments defined as per Technical Experience of Firms-a	20				
		2	Assignments defined as per Technical Experience of Firms-b	10				
		3	Assignments defined as per Technical Experience of Firms-c	5				
		N/1	TOTAL points for Criterion (1)	35 (D-4- Sh4				
			king for the above is as per following for no. of assignments	(Data Sneet				
		3(3)(2						
			no. of qualifying projects: 70% of max points					
			7 nos. of qualifying projects: 85% of max points					
		8	or more nos. of qualifying projects: 100% of max points					
			king for the above is as per following for no. of assignments	(Data Sheet				
			b) & 3(3)(c):					
			no. of qualifying projects: 70% of max points					
			4 nos. of qualifying projects: 85% of max points					
		5	or more nos. of qualifying projects: 100% of max points					
		2	2. EVALUATION UNDER CRITERIA FOR KEY					
			PROFESSIONALS (Submission through TECH-3 & 4):					
			*	20)				
			•	15)				
			Total points for criterion (2): [35]					
			Points to the key professionals will be allotted based on qual	ification and				
			experience in relevant field. Proportionate marks shall be giv					
			number of years of experience & number of projects.					
			The support professionals/staff deployment will be as per					
			discretions. Particulars should be indicated in the prescribed formation	at.				
		1	A DEOLLA CV. OF THE PROPOSED A CTWO POL OCY, AND					
		3. ADEQUACY OF THE PROPOSED METHODOLOGY AND WORK PLAN IN RESPONDING TO THE TERMS OF						
		REFERENCE (Submission through TECH-4, 5, 6, 7):						
		Sr.	<b>Description</b> H	Point				
		No.	s					
		1	Understanding scope of services; Approach &	5				
			Methodology; Work Plan/ Activity Schedule and					
		Deliverable; Organization and Staffing Schedule						
		2	Presentation 1	5				
		TOTAL points for Criterion (3) 30						
	<b>Presentation</b> shall be regarding understanding of the project objectives, Approach							

Sr. No.	ITC Clause Referen ce	Particulars						
		and Methodology, Work Plan and Scheduling, Innovativeness proposed for carryin out the work and Road map for successful implementation of the projects. Ref. Clause 23.3 of ITC.  (Soft copy of the presentation to be enclosed in e-envelope B TECH 4. Firms shall be called for presentation during the evaluation process)						
		NOTE:						
			core under technical proposal, a bidder has to score at					
6	8.1		ch category and 70% in total.  Il comprise the following:					
			Tender Document Fee)					
			Receipt for Cost of Tender Document					
		e- Envelope 'B' (	Technical Proposal)					
		TECH-1 (PDF)	Technical Proposal Submission Form					
		TECH-2 (PDF)	Technical Experience of Firm					
		TECH-3 (PDF)	Team Composition and Task Assignments					
		TECH-4 (PDF) CV of Proposed Key Professionals						
		TECH-5 (PDF)						
		TECH-6 (PDF)	Staffing Schedule					
		TECH-7 (PDF)	Work Schedule/ Activity Schedule					
		TECH-8 (PDF)	Annual Turnover Certificate with Audited Balance Sheets					
		TECH-9 (PDF)	Litigation History					
		TECH-10 (PDF)	Documents to be Uploaded Separately					
			Checklist for Supporting Documents (Excel)					
		e- Envelope 'C' (	Financial Proposal)					
		FIN-1 (PDF)	Financial Proposal Submission Form					
		FIN-2 (PDF)	Breakdown of Staff man-month cost					
7	10.0	Proposals must remain valid for <b>180 days</b> after the proposal submission date.						
8	24.6	The lowest evaluated Financial Proposal (Fm) is given the maximum financial score (Sf) of 100.  The formula for determining the financial scores is the following:  Sf = 100 x Fm / F, in which Sf is the financial score, Fm is the lowest price and F the price of the proposal under consideration.  The weights given to the Technical and Financial Proposals are:						
9	25	T = 0.8 and F = 0.2  Expected date and address for contract negotiations: Date of negotiation meeting will be intimated later.  Address: MMRCL Office, Hallmark Business Plaza, 8th Floor, Sant Dnyaneshwar Nagar, Bandra East, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400051.						

# **SECTION 3: TERMS OF REFERENCE (ToR)**

# A. Detailed Scope of Services

- 1. Site & Location Analysis
- 2. Real Estate Market Assessment
- 3. Product Mix -Identification of Optimum Development Option
- 4. Revenue Model & Transaction structure
- 5. Drafting Bidding terms for Transaction Advisory

# 1. Site and Location Analysis

# a. Details of plots

Following are the plots proposed for Property Development by MMRC:

# a) MIDC (CTS 42pt, Kondivate village, Andheri)

The plot admeasuring 4,586 sq.m is located adjacent to MIDC Metro Station of Metro Line-3. Police staff quarters were existed on the plot u/r which have been temporarily shifted till Metro construction. Development is proposed on the plot to accommodate police staff quarters with approx.3177 sq.m BUA & exploit the development potential of the land. Feasibility for the same needs to be assessed.

# **b)** Marol (CTS 1598, 1599(B) of Marol Division)

The plots admeasuring 895.5 sq.m. are located adjacent to Marol Naka Metro Station of Metro Line-3 which is an interchange station with Metro Line-1. The plots have been acquired by MMRC from private property owners for Metro entry exit & ancillary structures. Considering the prime location, it is proposed to exploit the development potential of the plots. Feasibility for the same needs to be assessed.

# c) **Dharavi** (CTS 343 (pt))

The plot is located within Dharavi Redevelopment Project and adjacent to Dharavi Metro Station of Metro Line-3. The plot accommodates Metro entry exit, ancillary structure, and approach road to receiving substation. Therefore, effective footprint available for the development is 420 sq.m. MMRC intends to exploit the development potential of the land. Feasibility for the same is to be assessed.

# **d) Jacob Circle** (CTS 1995, 1/1995, 1996 of Byculla Division)

Mahalaxmi Metro Station of Metro Line-3 is located below Sane Guruji Marg at Jacob Circle. Part of CTS 1995 has been temporarily handed over for construction of the Metro station. Development is proposed on three plots owned by various Govt. authorities admeasuring 3,515.22 sq.m. to accommodate existing Govt. offices & exploit development potential. Feasibility for the same needs to be assessed.

# e) Nayanagar (CTS 2116 (pt), 1618 (pt), Mahim Division)

The subject land admeasuring 3278 sq.m. area has been handed over temporarily for Metro-3 TBM launching shaft. It is proposed to assess the feasibility of development on the said land parcel.

# b. Detailed Analysis

The consultant would carry out a diagnostic review of the specific location attributes associated with the subject sites. Accordingly, a detailed study of the subject location would be undertaken to access the possible catalysts and impediments for undertaking real estate developments at the subject land parcels. This exercise would involve a study of the following parameters:

• Profile of the subject micro-market

- Accessibility and linkages/ connectivity of the site to key activity hubs in the region (including an assessment of key existing & proposed infrastructure initiatives specifically impacting the site)
- Positioning of the subject location in the image hierarchy of the surrounding region
- Profile of existing developments in the vicinity that might bear an impact on the market dynamics of the proposed project
- The consultant shall advise MMRCL on changes/alternations (if any) required in the prevailing byelaws/regulations which will enhance the development potential and subsequently the monetization of the project

Based on the above analysis, a detailed SWOT analysis for each plot should be submitted. The key takeaway from this exercise would enable the client to identify critical factors with respect to the site which could potentially have an impact on development dynamics and market attractiveness of the envisaged project. This is turn significantly contributes towards formulating an appropriate project development framework keeping in perspective the above highlighted factors and incorporating relevant mitigation strategies associated with the site.

The consultant will examine the feasibility of providing suitable real estate developments across multiple categories viz. retail, commercial, hospitality and residential at the sites to harness maximum benefit of the space available with MMRCL.

# 2. Real Estate Market Assessment

# a. Supply-Demand Dynamics

- Indication of known future supply additions planned in the city that may pose as potential competition to the subject sites
- Opinion on scale and type of residential/commercial/retail developments in the identified micro markets
- Features in terms of positioning, promotion, target market etc.
- Amenities & support infrastructure-apartment specifications, clubhouse, parking spaces, swimming pool, etc.
- Identification of the most prominent configurations & unit sizes being introduced into the market from a supply standpoint absorption of the same

# b. Assessment of Pricing Thresholds & Growth Exhibited

- Assessment of capital value trends (i.e. Basic sale price) witnessed over the last 2-3 years across various micro-markets
- In addition, the consultant would also assess prevalent thresholds for other key components of the
  pricing structure such as open/closed car parking charges, club house membership, preferred
  location charges, government related pass-through charges-external development/infrastructure
  development charges, etc.
- Budget Segment/Block Price Analysis: In addition to the configuration & size assessment, the
  consultant would also delineate the y-on-y absorption witnessed across
  residential/commercial/retail segments & micro-markets into various budget thresholds. The
  primary intent of this exercise is to gain an understanding of the movement in market appetite in
  context of pricing dynamics.

The development strategy recommendations would be prepared based on the findings in all the above segments elaborating the market dynamics and the latent opportunities existing in the market.

# c. Market Assessment Exercise – Benchmarking of Projects

Benchmarking of prominent real estate projects in relevant micro-markets would be undertaken at this stage with the objective of identifying specific competing developments as well as observed best practices

in the segment; a critical aspect feeding into formulation of well aligned product offerings & the overall Business Plan.

Accordingly, an assessment of the following key parameters would be undertaken as part of this benchmarking exercise (to be undertaken for 2-3 current/proposed/planned projects across the identified segments):

- Location, scale and phasing of the development
- Product mix details such as the land area, size of the development (built-up area, number of units, etc.), number of floors, parking area, etc.
- Facilities / Amenities provided
- Profile in terms of the target segment, positioning strategy & core development concept adopted

# d. Key Performance Metrics

- Absorption & timelines exhibited
- Pricing Strategy Adopted prevailing capital values / sale price (including other charges such as club membership, parking, preferred location charges, etc.
- Segregation of components, where relevant anchors, image enhancers, revenue generators, etc.

# e. Implication on Development Strategy

Utilizing the above findings, the consultant would derive the critical success factors & USPs characterizing the benchmarked development and further, identify key industry / segment best practices in context of the same (along with their applicability given local conditions & dynamics)

# 3. Product Mix- Identification of Optimum Development Option

Based on findings of the market assessment exercise, the consultant would formulate strategic recommendations pertaining to critical project level components, aimed at deriving suitable product-mix & development strategy options. These recommendations would be formulated constituting a vital part of the Business Plan for the developments:

# a. Derivation of Alternative Product-Mix Options

Post assessment of the y-o-y demand potential for the subject site, the consultant would formulate alternate product-mix / development options along with a suitable development concept keeping in perspective the market dynamics exhibited. This exercise would entail an assessment of the following key parameters:

- Area scheduling for the Development (i.e. derivation of critical thresholds within envisaged project components/segments)
  - Identification of primary / anchor component: The consultant would identify the specific segment / product that is expected to serve as the key driver for the envisaged development.
- Derivation of Phasing Strategy
  - The consultant would provide recommendations with respect to the manner of introduction / launch / scaling up of various segments envisaged as per the demand estimation exercise undertaken previously. Accordingly, the market thresholds determined for each component would be phased out within the ambit of the following strategies, where applicable
- Formulating an Optimal Positioning Strategy
  Keeping in perspective the proposed phasing of various segments, the consultant would provide
  recommendations with respect to the market positioning to be adopted during various stages of
  the envisaged development
- Pricing Strategy
  - Having formulated the product, phasing & positioning strategies, the consultant would assess the achievable pricing (i.e. achievable capital values/rentals, ARR, etc. and corresponding y-on-y escalations) for the subject development

Utilizing the above findings, the consultant would generate alternate product-mix scenarios for the subject development, which would be further evaluated & tested through a detailed financial assessment exercise. Further, relevance & impact of inter-component synergies would also be factored in while generating these development options. Each scenario would be studied to understand the optimum value of the development.

Please note: The development options formulated shall take into account the following scenarios:

- i. **Revenue Maximization** considering a real estate project, the product-mix ascertained would be in line with the obtaining value maximization of the project
- ii. **Disposal strategy** considering the cost- benefit analysis, disposal strategy should be recommended for each plot to help decision making for self-development/outright disposal to third party/joint development etc
- iii. **Social Impact Maximization** considering that the project is a government initiative, the scenario would ascertain the product mix and pricing that would lead to impact maximization on a social front

The scenarios would be further compared during the financial analysis to arrive at an optimal development mix & strategy for disposal.

# b. Identification of Prominent Developers/investors for PD

- The consultant shall identify domestic/international developers/investors active in real estate market.
- The consultant shall also identify stakeholders actively investing in Transit Oriented Developments.
- The consultant shall study the projects undertaken by identified stakeholders in view of product mix, location, payment structure etc.

# 4. Revenue Model & Transaction Structuring

# a. Financial Analysis

Based on inputs from the above demand assessment exercise, a detailed financial analysis (EBITDA level Cash Flows ~ along with sensitivities) of the proposed development strategy would be undertaken based on forecasted absorption rates, achievable capital & lease values, capital expenditure, operating expenses, etc. The approach framework for financial analysis has been elucidated below:

As highlighted, this exercise would be conducted keeping in view the following:

The development options identified will be further assessed on the basis of Cost vs Returns. Based on the development plan identified, a detailed financial analysis along with sensitivities will be undertaken to determine financial implications including:

- Income assumptions in terms of achievable capital values, rentals, ARR and other revenues
- Cost assumptions in terms of construction and development costs, interest during construction, consultants/architects fee etc. as per industry standards
- Absorption / Occupancy assumptions
- Risk analysis
- Phasing of the project development/construction phasing, debt phasing, estimated sales, etc.
- Projecting cash flows over the project period
- Assessing project returns in Net Present Value (NPV)

# b. Project Returns

To arrive at an accurate projection of the returns from the subject development, the following analysis would be carried out:

- Cash flow projections over the project period for the proposed development options based on income and cost assumptions
- Assessment of cash generation & self-financing potential of the project along with diagnostic review of break-even / payback thresholds
- Assessing project returns in Net Present Value (NPV) and Internal Rate of Return (IRR) terms
- Comparative financial analysis to determine the optimal development option

This financial analysis would enable identification of the most viable product mix (based on the scenarios developed in the aforementioned section) for the subject development from a market and financial perspective and subsequently evaluate the intrinsic / Residual Value of the land parcel using a predetermined target rate of return.

- Based on the studies, revenue model shall be prepared for each site. The estimate will bring out clearly the additional cost burden to be borne by MMRCL.
- Post undertaking feasibility of real estate development options, the consultant will also suggest
  appropriate mode of development for each site. The consultant will also advise MMRCL on the
  optimal development model like lease, PPP, self-development, outright sale etc
- The consultant shall recommend funding options that would lead to optimum land monetization

# c. Payment terms for disposal of land pockets

Based on the financial analysis, the consultant shall structure the payment terms to minimise the risk and optimize revenue.

Considering government led property development, the consultant shall compare and indicate risks associated with different payment structures like upfront payment, deferred payment, lease etc.

# 5. <u>Drafting Bidding Terms for Transaction Advisory</u>

Based on the recommended transaction structure for each site, the consultant shall prepare tender documents to dispose/develop each site. Inputs from identified stakeholders shall be considered while drafting the bidding terms.

# B. Schedule of payment

The consultant shall be paid based on the deliverables as detailed below:

	Heads	Description of Works	Timeline	Percentage of Amount to be released
1	Inception Report	Site and Location Analysis and Regulatory Overview	1 week	25%
2	Market Assessment Report Submission	Demand Supply Scenarios, Existing Transaction Rate, Product mix, absorption trends and assumptions	6 weeks	
3	Financial Model Report Submission	Formulation of Financial Model, Mode of Development, associated Risks and Costs, Cashflow Statement, Project Phasing	9 weeks	50%
4	Bidding Terms for Transaction Advisory	Preparation of Bidding terms for Transaction Advisory through discussions with market leaders	11 weeks	25%
5	Final Report Submission	Compiled report submission as per discussions with Competent Authority	12 weeks	

# **SECTION 4: Bidding Forms**

# A. Form TECH 1: Technical Proposal Submission Form (e-Envelope 'B')

Mr R. Ramana
Executive Director (Planning)
MMRCL,2<sup>nd</sup> floor,
Hallmark Plaza, Sant Dyaneshwar Nagar,
Bandra (East)
Mumbai-400 051

# Sub: RFP for carrying out Real Estate Market Assessment and Financial Feasibility for Properties in vicinity of Metro Line -3

Dear Sir,

We, the undersigned, offer to provide the consulting services for "Carrying out Real Estate Market Assessment and Financial Feasibility for Properties in vicinity of Metro Line -3" in accordance with your Request for Proposals dated [Insert Date].

# We hereby declare that:

- (a) All the information and statements made in this Proposal are true and we accept that any misinterpretation or misrepresentation contained in this Proposal may lead to our disqualification by the Client.
- (b) Our Proposal shall be valid and remain binding upon us for the period of time specified in the Data Sheet,
- (c) We have no conflict of interest in accordance with ITC 3.
  - We confirm our understanding of our obligation to abide in this regard to corrupt and fraudulent practices as per ITC 5.
- (d) We undertake to negotiate a Contract on the basis of the proposed Key Experts. We accept that the substitution of Key Experts shall not be proposed as stated in ITC Clause 10 and ITC Clause 27 may lead to the termination of Contract negotiations.
- (e) Our Proposal is binding upon us and subject to any modifications resulting from the Contract negotiations.

We undertake, if our Proposal is accepted and the Contract is signed, to initiate the Services related to the assignment no later than the date indicated in the Data Sheet.

We understand that the Client is not bound to accept any Proposal that the Client receives. We remain,

Yours sincerely,

Authorised Signature {In full and initials}:Name and Title of Signatory:						
Name of Consultant (company's name): In the capacity of:						
Address:						
Contact information (phone and e-mail):						

# B. Form TECH 2: Technical Experience of Firm (e-Envelope 'B')

[Using the format below, provide information on each assignment under eligibility criteria for which your firm was legally contracted, for carrying out consulting services requested under Clause 6 in section 2 ITC]

Assignment name:	Approx. value of the contract (in current INR):
Country: Location within country:	Duration of assignment (months):
Name of Employer and Contact Details:	Total No of staff-months of the assignment:
Address:	Approx. value of the services provided by your firm under the contract (in current INR):
Start date (month/year): Completion date (month/year):	No of professional staff-months provided by associated Consultants:
Narrative description of Project:	
Description of actual services provided by y	our staff within the assignment:

### Firm's Name:

- **1.**Proof of Consultant's Experience in the form of valid Completion Certificate/work done certificate from client (issued by an officer not below the rank of Executive Engineer or equivalent of the client) or document establishing at least 90% of total payment done and certified by the auditor or any document that establishes that such assignment has been accepted by the employer. In the absence of such documentary proof, the assignment shall not be considered eligible for evaluation.
- 2. Supporting documents stating salable built-up area & location of the project shall be submitted. Also, necessary document to establish successful transaction based on advisory services by the bidder should be submitted. In the absence of such documentary proof, the assignment shall not be considered eligible for evaluation. The above information shall be submitted as part of Technical Proposal (e-envelope B- Form TECH-2)
- **3.** Copy of Contract/work orders indicating the details of completed assignments and previous clients etc

# C. Form TECH-3: Team Composition and Task Assignments (e-Envelope 'B')

	Proposed Key Professional Staff						
Sr No	Name of Staff	Firm	Area of Expertise	Position Assigned	Task Assigned		
1							
2							
N							
Sr No	Proposed Support Professional						
1							
2							
n							

# D. Form TECH-4: Curriculum Vitae (CV) for Proposed Key Professional (e-Envelope 'B')

1. Proposed Po	<b>Proposed Position</b> [only one candidate shall be nominated for each position]:							
2. Name of Firm	Name of Firm [Insert name of firm proposing the staff]:							
3. Name of Stat	<b>ff</b> [Insert full name]:							
4. Years with the	he Firm:							
5. Present Posi	tion in the Firm:							
5. Date of Birth	1:	Nationality:						
_	<b>Education</b> [Indicate college/university and other specialised education of staff member, giving names of institutions, degrees obtained, and dates of obtainment]:							
3. Overall Expe	erience (years and mo	onths):	_					
_	perience as per emplo in Professional Socie	oyment record (years and reties:	months):					
11. Other Trai	ning [Indicate signific	ant training since degrees u	nder 7 - Education were					
2. Countries of	Work Experience: [A	List countries where staff ha	s worked in the last ten years]:					
13. Languages [A and writing]:	8 8	licate proficiency: good, fair	r, or poor in speaking, reading,					
neld by staff mer	nber since graduation,		verse order every employment t (see format here below): dates					
From [Year]:	To [Year]·	Employer:	Positions held:					

15. Detailed Tasks Assigned

16. Work Undertaken that Best Illustrates Capability to

	Handle the Tasks Assigned (Key Qualifications)							
[List all tasks to be performed under this assignment]	[Among the assignments in which the staff has been involved, indicate the following information for those assignments that best illustrate staff capability to handle the tasks listed under point 15.]							
	Name of assignment or project:							
	Year:							
	Location:							
	Employer:							
	Main project features:							
describes myself, my qualificati	at to the best of my knowledge and belief, this CV correctly ons, and my experience. I understand that any wilful misstatement disqualification or dismissal, if engaged.							
Date:								
[Signature of staff member] Day,	'Month/Year							
Full name of staff:								
Date: [Signature of authorised represe	entative of the firm] Day/Month/Year							
Full name of authorised represen	tative of the firm:							

Note: CV of each individual (clearly stating tenure of the key personnel working with the current firm) should be signed by the respective staff member along with the date and endorsed by the authorised representative of the firm.

# E. Form TECH-5: Description of Understanding of Scope of Services, Approach, Methodology and Work Plan/Activity Schedule for performing the assignment (e-Envelope 'B')

Technical approach, methodology, and work plan are key components of the technical proposal. You are suggested to present your Technical Proposal (05 pages, inclusive of chart and diagrams):

- a) Understanding of Scope of Services;
- *b)* Approach;
- c) Methodology;
- d) Work Plan/Activity Schedule; and deliverables
- e) Organisation & Staffing and Staffing Schedule
- b) <u>Understanding of Scope of Services.</u> In this chapter you should explain your understanding of the objectives of the assignment and scope of services.
- c) <u>Approach.</u> In this chapter you should explain your approach to the services for carrying out the activities and obtaining the expected output, and the degree of detail of such output. You should highlight the problems being addressed and their importance, and explain the technical approach you would adopt to address them.
- d) <u>Methodology</u>. In this chapter you should explain your Methodology for carrying out the activities and obtaining the expected output, and the degree of detail of such output. You should also explain the methodologies you propose to adopt and highlight the compatibility of those methodologies with the proposed approach.
- e) Work Plan/Activity Schedule. In this chapter you should propose the main activities of the assignment, their content and duration, phasing and interrelations, milestones (including interim approvals by the Employer), and delivery dates of the reports. The proposed work plan should be consistent with the technical approach and methodology, showing understanding of the TOR and ability to translate them into a feasible working plan. A list of the final documents, including reports, drawings, and tables to be delivered as final output, should be included here. The work plan/Activity Schedule should be consistent with the Work Schedule/Activity Schedule of Form TECH-7.
- f) <u>Organisation & Staffing and Staffing Schedule.</u> In this chapter you should propose the structure and composition of your team. You should list the main disciplines of the assignment, the key expert responsible, and proposed technical and support staff. Present the manning schedule for Key Personnel and Support Personnel as per the understanding on the scope of services, approach and methodology. The Staffing Schedule should be consistent with the Staffing Schedule of Form TECH-6.
- g) <u>A Power Point Presentation explaining above proposal.</u> Bidder shall be called to present the Technical proposal to MMRC. Bidder to take a note that PPT presented to MMRC should be the same as submitted here. No change in PPT shall be allowed after bid submission while presenting to MMRC.

# F. Form TECH-6: Staffing Schedule (e-Envelope 'B')

	Name of Staff& Position Staff input in weeks (in the form of a bar chart)										Total staff- month input			
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	Input
Key Pr	rofessionals		1				I	1			1	1	1	
1														
2														
N														
						Į.				S	ub-tota	l		
Suppor Profess	rt sionals													
1														
2														
n														
	•	ı	1				ı			S	ub-tota	l		
Total														

<sup>1</sup> For Key Professional Staff and Support Professional staff, the input should be indicated individually

<sup>2</sup> Months are counted from the start of the assignment.

# G. Form TECH-7: Work Schedule/ Activity Schedule (e-Envelope 'B')

# a. Activity Schedule

N.T.	Activity <sup>1</sup>		Weeks											
No		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	
1														
2														
3														
4														
5														
n														

<sup>1</sup> Indicate all main activities of the assignment, including delivery of reports (e.g.: inception, interim, and final reports), and other benchmarks such as Employer approvals. For phased assignments indicate activities, delivery of reports, and benchmarks separately for each phase.

<sup>2</sup> Duration of activities shall be indicated in the form of a bar chart.

b. Completion and Submission of Reports/ Deliverables (as per ToR) (e-Envelope 'B')

	ion and Submission of Reports/ Denverable	Months	No of physical
Report		from	& Soft
No.	Description of the Deliverable	effective	Copies
		date of the	
		study	
1-1			
1-2			
1-3			
1-4			
1-5			
1-6			
1-7			
-			
-			
-			
-			

# H. Form TECH-8: Annual Turnover Certificate

Particulars	Financial Year				
	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	2021-22
a) Gross Annual Turnover Rupees (In Lakhs)					
b) Profit / Loss Rupees (In Lakhs)					
c) Certified By					

Annual turnover certificates, Audited profit & loss accounts & audited balance sheets for la	st 5
financial years to be attached signed and digitally verified by Chartered Accountant.	

Name and Address of Chartered Accountant:

**UDIN:** 

# I. Form TECH-9: Litigation History

Sr. No	Case Particulars	Date of Filing	Case Outcome / Present Status

# J. TECH-10 Documents to be uploaded separately

- 1. Receipt for Cost of Tender Document
- 2. Certificate of Incorporation
- 3. PAN Card
- 4. GST Registration
- 5. MSME Registration
- 6. Partnership Details
- 7. Undertaking for not Blacklisting
- 8. Non-Disclosure Agreement
- **9.** Authorized Signatory
- 10. Unconditional offer and List of Documents

(All above documents to be uploaded together under Form TECH-10)

# K. Checklist for Technical Proposal (e-Envelope 'B')

Sr.	Partic		Description	Yes/No
<b>No</b> 1	Technical Proposal Sub	mission form	Form TECH 1 of RFP	Mandatory
2	Consultant's Experience under Eligibility Criteria under ITC Clause 6		Form TECH 2 of RFP (Copy of Contract/work orders indicating the details of previous assignment, client etc. should be submitted. The Competent authority of the Consulting firm shall self-certify if the firm has done assignments on non-disclosure agreements)	Mandatory
3	Description of Understa Services, Approach, Me Plan/ Activity Schedule assignment	ethodology and Work	Form TECH-3 of RFP	Mandatory
4	Team Composition and	Task Assignments	Form TECH-4 of RFP	Mandatory
5	Curriculum Vitae (CV) for Proposed Professional Staff		Form TECH-5 of RFP	Mandatory
6	Staffing Schedule		FormTECH-6 of RFP	Mandatory
7	Work Schedule/ Activity Schedule		Form TECH-7 of RFP	Mandatory
8	Annual Turnover Certificates from CA & audited balance sheet for last 5 financial years		Form TECH-8 of RFP	Mandatory
9	Litigation History		Form TECH-9 of RFP	Mandatory
10	Receipt for Cost of Tender Document	Scanned copy of the receipt	Form TECH-10 of RFP (All documents from Sr. No.	Yes/No
11	Certificate of Incorporation	Copy of Certificate of Incorporation/ Registration	10 to 19 to be uploaded together under form TECH-10)	Yes/No
12	PAN Card	Copy of PAN Card		Yes/No
13	GST Registration	Copy of GST Registration		Yes/No
14	MSME Registration	Copy of MSME Registration if any		Yes/No
15	Partnership details	Copy of valid partnership deed/MOA/AOA, if any, should be attached along with the technical proposal		Yes/No
16	The Bidder must not be debarred/ blacklisted by any	An undertaking stating that firm/organization is		Yes/No

Sr. No	Particulars		Description	Yes/No
	Government body/PSU in India as on date of submission of the Bid.	not blacklisted by Government or its agencies including Central/State Level Public Enterprises.		
17	Non-Disclosure Agreement	A Certificate regarding non-disclosure/sharing of confidential information with third parties.		Yes/No
18	Authorized signatory	Authority letter clearly mentioning details of authorized representative of the Agency to execute the contract formalities should be attached along with technical proposal.		Yes/No
19	Unconditional offer & list of documents	Covering letter declaring the offer to be unconditional and a list of all the documents submitting along with the Bid.		Yes/No

# L. Form FIN-1: Financial Proposal Submission Form (e-Envelope 'C')

[Submission of Financial proposal should be done in formats available on the portal. The information in brackets [] should not appear in the Financial Proposals to be submitted. Financial Proposal Standard Form in excel and PDF format shall be used for the preparation of the Financial Proposal according to the instructions provided under Section 2.]

[Location, Date]
D:
ear Sirs:
Te, the undersigned, offer to provide the consulting services for [Insert title of assignment] accordance with your Request for Proposal dated [Insert Date] and our Technical roposal. Our attached Financial Proposal for "Carrying out Real Estate Market assessment and Financial Feasibility for Properties in vicinity of Metro Line -3" is [Insert mount(s) in words and figures 1]. This amount is inclusive of all the local taxes, duties GST. {Please note that all amounts shall be the same as in Form FIN-2}.
ur Financial Proposal shall be binding upon us subject to the modifications resulting om Contract negotiations, up to expiration of the validity period of the Proposal, i.e. before e date indicated in the Data Sheet.
Yours sincerely,
Authorised Signature [In full and initials]:
Amounts must coincide with the ones indicated under Total Cost of Financial proposal in Form FIN-2.

# M. Form FIN-2: Breakdown of Staff-Month Cost (All inclusive) (e-Envelope 'C')

[Submission of Financial proposal should be done in formats available on the portal. The information in brackets [] should not appear in the Financial Proposals to be submitted. Financial Proposal Standard Form in excel and PDF format shall be used for the preparation of the Financial Proposal according to the instructions provided under Section 2.]

Sl. No.	Name	Position	Man- moth Rate	Total Person Month	Total Amount (Rs.)
Key Profe	essional				
1					
2					
	Sub-Total				
Support I	Professional				
1					
2					
			Total li	ımpsum fee	
			GST (		
Total incl. GST					

- 1 Form FIN-2 shall be filled in for the same Professional (Key Professionals and Support Professionals) and Support Staff listed in Form TECH-6.
- 2 Key Professional Staff and Support Professionals should be indicated individually; Support Staff should be indicated per category (e.g.: draftsmen, clerical staff).
- Positions of the Key Professional & Support Professional Staff shall coincide with the ones indicated in Form TECH-4.

# **Section 5. Form of Contract (Draft)**

# Consultants' Services

# Lump-Sum

Draft CONTRACT FOR CONSULTANTS' SERVICES

**Lump-Sum** 

between
octween
[name of the Employer]
and
[name of the Consultant]
Dated:

# **Form of Contract**

#### LUMP-SUM

·	t Real Estate Market Assessment	t and Financial Feasib	<u>ility</u>
for Properties in vicinity of M	detro Line -3		
This Agreement is made on the	day of the month of	and executed	at
between on the one hand, I	Mumbai Metro Rail Corporation L	imited (MMRC) a com	ıpany
incorporated under the provisions of t	the Companies Act, 1956/2013, ha	wing its registered offi	ce at
, Bandra Ea	st, Mumbai 400051, hereinafter refe	erred to as the 'Client' o	n the
one part, represented by		(name and designation	on of
representing officer), which term shall,	, unless excluded by or repugnant	to the context, be deem	ed to
include its representatives, successors a	and assignees.		
	AND		
		Consultants havir	ng its
registered/corporate office at	t	represented	by
	(name and designation	n of representing office	r) on
the other part (Hereinafter called "An	rchitect & Consultants/Consultant	") which term shall, u	nless
excluded by or repugnant to the cont	ext, be deemed to include its rep	resentatives, successor	s and

# **WHEREAS**

assignees.

- a. The Client is a SPV, Joint Venture Company of Government of India and Government of Maharashtra and implementing underground Colaba-Bandra-Andheri (SEEPZ) Metro Line-3 in Mumbai. The Client desires to appoint a Consultant to provide certain consulting services as defined in the General Conditions and elsewhere of Contract attached to this Agreement (herein called the "Services")
- b. The Client had invited proposals (via Request for Proposal (RFP) No. ------ Dated ------ from the interested parties for "Carrying out Real Estate Market
   Assessment and Financial Feasibility for Properties in vicinity of Metro Line -3".
- c. After evaluation of bids, the Client has selected the Consultant on open tendering basis as they have the required professional skills, personnel and technical

RFP for Carrying out Real Estate Market Assessment and Financial Feasibility for Properties in vicinity of Metro Line-3 resources. The Consultant has agreed to provide the Services specified in the RFP on such terms and conditions as set forth in this Agreement.

# NOW THIS AGREEMENT WITNESSETH AND THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOW:

- 1) The Agreement shall come into effect on the date of issue of Work Order (Effective Date).
- 2) This Agreement shall remain in force for a period of 3 months and shall continue until all of the Services are completed; unless terminated earlier subject to the provisions of this Agreement.
- 3) The Consultant shall ensure deployment of key personnel and support staff/ engineers for period as quoted in their proposal including construction phase and there will be no upward revision in consultant fee. However, any shortfall in deployment would entail proportionate reduction in contract value.'
- 4) The following documents attached hereto shall be deemed to form an integral Part of this contract.
  - a) The work order issued by Client
  - b) The Letter of Acceptance (LOA) issued by the Client
  - c) All the submission Proposals and documents made by the Consultant as part of the RFP submission (e- Envelop A, B &C)
  - d) RFP document
  - e) Response to pre-bid queries
  - f) Corrigendum to the RFP if issued by the Client;
  - g) Addendum(s) to the RFP
  - h) The General conditions of contract (herein after called GCC)
  - i) The Special conditions of contract (herein after called SCC)
- 5) The mutual rights and obligations of the Client and the Consultants shall be as set forth in the Agreement; in particular:
  - a) The Consultants shall carry out the Services in accordance with the Provisions of the Contract; and
  - b) The Client shall make milestone payments to the Consultant in such manner as specified in Schedule of payments.

c)	The financial offer including GST submitted by the Consultant while responding	ig to
	the Request for Proposal and accepted by the client is Rs( Ru	pees
	only)	

respective names as of the day and year above written.	
For and on behalf of Mumbai Metro Rail Corporation Limited (50: Government of India and Government of Maharashtra)	50 Joint Venture between
Authorized Representative of the Client	
Witness 1	Witness 2
For and on behalf of Consultant	
Authorized Representative of the Consultant	
Witness 1	Witness 2

RFP for Carrying out Real Estate Market Assessment and Financial Feasibility for Properties in vicinity of Metro Line-3

IN WITNESS, WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be signed in their

# 5.1 GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

# **5.1.1** Definitions:

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms whenever used in this contract have the following meanings:

- a. "Applicable Law" means the laws and any other instruments having the force of law in India.
- b. "Contract" means the Contract signed by the Parties, to which these General Conditions of Contract are attached, together with all the documents listed in agreement of such signed Contract:
- c. "Effective Date" means the date on which this Contract comes into force
- d. "Employer/Client" means MMRC represented by Managing Director/Executive Director (Planning)
- e. "Engineer in charge" means any officer designated by the Employer for the project.
- f. "GC" means these General Conditions of Contract
- g. "Government" means the Government of India / Government of Maharashtra.
- h. "Local Currency" means the Currency of the Government of India
- i. "Party" means the Client or the Consultants, as the case may be, and Parties means both of them
- j. "Personnel" means persons hired by the Consultants or by any Sub- consultant as employees and assigned to the performance of the Services or any part thereof
- k. "SCC" means the special Conditions of Contract by which these General Conditions of Contract may be amended or supplemented.
- 1. "Services" means the work to be performed by the Consultants pursuant to this Contract may be amended or supplemented.
- m. "Sub Consultant" means any entity to which the Consultants, sub-contract any part of the Services in accordance with the Provisions of Clauses elsewhere in the contract and
- n. "Third -Party" means any person or entity other than the Government, the Client the Consultants or a Sub-consultant.

## **5.1.2** Relation between the Parties

Nothing contained herein shall be construed as establishing a relation of Master and servant or of principal and agent as between the Client and the Consultants. The Consultants, subject to this Contract, have complete charge of Personnel and sub – consultants, if any, performing the services and shall be fully responsible for the Services performed by them or on their behalf hereunder:

#### **5.1.3** Law Governing Contract

This Contract, its meaning and interpretation and the relation between the Parties shall be governed by the Applicable Law.

A Party may change its address for notice hereunder by giving the other Party notice of such change pursuant to the provisions listed in the SCC.

# 5.1.5 Location

The services shall be performed at such locations as are specified in Appendix 'A' hereto, where the locations of a particular task is not so specified at such locations as the Client may approve.

# **5.1.6** Authorized Representative

Any action required or permitted to be taken, and any document required or permitted to be executed, under the contract by the Client or the Consultants may be taken or executed by the officials specified in the SCC.

# 5.1.7 Taxes, Duties and Currency of Proposal & Payment

#### 5.1.7.1 Taxes and Duties

The Financial proposal shall take into account all the tax liabilities. Further, all payments shall be subject to deduction of taxes at source as per Applicable Laws. Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, the Consultants, Sub-consultants and Personnel shall pay any such additional taxes, duties, fees and other impositions as may be levied Under the Applicable Law. Payment of GST shall also be responsibility of the consultant. Same shall be reimbursed by the client. Consultant shall ensure payment of applicable stamp duty charges as per Maharashtra Stamp Act.

# 5.1.7.2 Currency of Proposal and Payments

The consultant shall express the price for its Services in the Indian Rupees (INR) only. No foreign currency fluctuation will be paid. Payment under the Contract shall be made in the INR only.

# 5.1.8 Negotiations and Award

Negotiations will be held at the address indicated in the Data Sheet with regard to the weakness if any in the selected proposal. The invited Consultant will, as a pre-requisite for attendance at the negotiations, confirm availability of all Professional Staff. Failure in satisfying such requirements may result in MMRC proceeding to negotiate the next-ranked Consultant. Representatives conducting negotiations on behalf of the Consultant must have written authority to negotiate and conclude a contract.

# **5.1.8.1 Technical Negotiations**

Negotiations will include a discussion of the Technical Proposal, the proposed technical approach and methodology, work plan, organisation and staffing, knowledge transfer and training and any suggestions made by the Consultant to improve the Terms of Reference. MMRC and the Consultant will finalise the Terms of Reference, staffing

RFP for Carrying out Real Estate Market Assessment and Financial Feasibility for Properties in vicinity of Metro Line-3
Schedule, Work Schedule, logistics and reporting. These documents will then be incorporated in the Contract as "Description of Services". Special attention will be paid to clearly defining the inputs and facilities required from MMRC to ensure satisfactory implementation of the assignment. MMRC shall prepare minutes of negotiations which will be signed by MMRC and the Consultant.

# 5.1.8.2 Availability of Key Personnel Staff/ Experts

Having selected the Consultant on the basis of, among other things, an evaluation of the proposed Key Personnel, MMRC expects to negotiate a Contract on the basis of the Professional staff named in the Proposal. Before contract negotiations MMRC will require assurances that the Professional staff will be actually available. MMRC will not consider substitutions during the contract negotiations. If this is not the case and if it is established that Professional staff were offered in the proposal without confirming their availability, this results in rejection of the Consultant's preproposal and the Client proceeding to negotiate the Contract with the next-ranked Consultant.

## **5.1.8.3** Financial Negotiations

The negotiations include the clarification of the Consultant's tax liability in the Client's country and how it should be reflected in the contract.

Staff month rate negotiation shall not take place, except when the offered Key Personnel and support staff's renumeration rates are much higher than the typically charged rates by consultants in similar contracts. In such cases, the Client may ask for clarifications and, if the fees are very high, ask to change the rates.

# **5.1.8.4** Conclusion of negotiations

Negotiations will conclude with a review of the draft contract. To complete negotiations, MMRC and the Consultant will initial the agreed Contract. If negotiations fail, MMRC will invite the Consultant whose proposal received the second highest score to negotiate a Contract.

# 5.1.9 Commencement, Completion, Modification and Termination of Contract

# **5.1.9.1.** Effectives of Contract

This Contract shall come into force and effect on the date (the "Effective Date") of the Client's notice to the Consultants instructing the Consultants to begin carrying out the Services and shall confirm that the effectiveness conditions, if any listed in the SCC have been met.

#### **5.1.9.2** Commencement of Services

The Consultants shall begin carrying out the Services at the end of such time period after the effective date as shall be specified in the SCC.

# **5.1.9.3 Expiration of Contract**

Unless terminated earlier pursuant to Clause GC 5.1.9.11 hereof, this Contract shall expire when services have been completed and all payments have been made at the end of such time period, after the effective date as shall be specified in the SCC.

# **5.1.9.4** Entire Agreement

This Contract contains all covenants, stipulations and provisions agreed by the Parties. No agent or representative of either Party has authority to make and the Parties shall not be bound by or be liable for, any statement, representation, promise or agreement not set forth herein.

#### 5.1.9.5 Modification

Modification of the term and conditions of this Contract, including any modification of the scope of the Services, may only be made by written agreement between the Parties.

# 5.1.9.6 Force Majeure

- a) For the purposes of this Contract, "Force Majeure" means an event which is beyond the reasonable control of a Party and which makes a Party's performance of its obligations under the Contract impossible or so impractical as to be considered impossible under the circumstances and subject to those requirements, includes, but is not limited to, war, riots, terrorism, civil disorder, earthquake, fire, explosion, storm, flood or other adverse weather conditions, strikes, lockouts or other industrial action, confiscation or any other action by Government agencies.
- b) Force Majeure shall not include (i) any event which is caused by the negligence or intentional action of a party or such Party's Experts, Sub-consultants or agents or employees, nor (ii) any event which a diligent Party could reasonably have been expected both to take into account at the time of the conclusion of this Contract and avoid or overcome in the carrying out of its obligations hereunder.
- c) Force Majeure shall not include insufficiency of funds or failure to make any payment required hereunder.

# 5.1.9.7 No Breach of Contract

The failure of a party to fulfill any of its obligations hereunder shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under this Contract so far as such inability arises from an event of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event has taken all reasonable precautions due care and reasonable alternative measures, all with the objective of carrying out terms and conditions of this Contract.

# 5.1.9.8 Measures to be taken

- a. A Party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall take all reasonable measures to remove such Party's inability to fulfill its obligations hereunder with a minimum of delay.
- b. A Party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall notify the other Party of such event as soon as possible and in any event not later than fourteen (14) days following the occurrence of such event providing evidence of the nature and causes of such event and shall similarly give notice of the restoration of normal conditions as soon as possible.
- c. The Parties shall take all reasonable measures to minimize the consequences of any event of Force Majeure.

#### 5.1.9.9 Extension of Time

Any period, within which a party shall pursuant to this Contract complete any action or task shall be extended for a period equal to the time during which such Party was unable to perform such action as a result of Force Majeure.

# **5.1.9.10** Suspension

The Client may, by written notice of suspension to the Consultants, suspend all payments to the Consultants hereunder if the Consultants fail to perform their obligations under this Contract, including the carrying out of the Services, provided that such notice of suspension

- i. Shall specify the nature of the failure and
- ii. Shall request the Consultants to remedy such failure within a period not exceeding thirty (30) days after receipt by the Consultants of such notice of suspension.

#### 5.1.9.11 Termination

The Client may by not less than thirty (30) days shall give the written notice of termination to the Consultants after the occurrence of any of the following events (except in the event listed in the paragraph (f) below, for which there shall be a written

RFP for Carrying out Real Estate Market Assessment and Financial Feasibility for Properties in vicinity of Metro Line-3 notice of not less than sixty days). Such notices to be given after the occurrences of any of the events specified in the paragraphs (a) through (g).

- a) If the Consultants fail to remedy a failure in the performance of their obligations hereunder, as specified in a notice of suspension pursuant to clause GC 5.1.9.10 herein above, within thirty (30) days of receipt of such notice of suspension or within such further period as the Client may have subsequently approved in writing;
- b) If the Consultants become (or, if the Consultants consist of more than one entity, if any of their Members becomes) insolvent or bankrupt or enter into any agreements with their creditors for relief of debt or take advantage of any law for the benefit of debtors or go into liquidation or receivership whether compulsory or voluntary;
- c) If the Consultants fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration proceedings.
- d) If the Consultants submit to the Client, a statement which has a material effect on the rights, obligations and interests of the Client and which the Consultants know to be false.
- e) If, as a result of Force Majeure, the Consultants are unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a period of not less than sixty (60) days;
- f) If the Consultant, in the judgment of the Client has engaged in corrupt or fraudulent practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.
- g) If the Client in its sole discretion for any reason whatsoever, decides to terminate this contract.

## **5.1.10** Cessation of Rights and Obligations

Upon termination of this Contract pursuant to Clauses GC 5.1.9.11 hereof, or upon expiration of this contract, pursuant to Clause GC 5.1.9.3 all rights and obligations of the Parties hereunder shall cease, except:

- Such rights and obligations as may have accrued on the date of termination or expiration;
- ii) The obligation of confidentiality.
- iii) The Consultants obligation to permit inspection copying and auditing of their accounts and records set forth.
- iv) Any right which a Party may have under the applicable law.

# **5.1.11** Disputes about Events of Termination

- a. Except where otherwise specified in the contract and subject to the powers delegated to him by MMRC then in force the decision of the Executive Director (Planning) for the time being shall be final, conclusive and binding on all parties to the Contract upon all question relating to the meaning of the contract conditions or as to any other question, claim, right, matter or things, whatsoever if any way arising out of or relating to the contracts.
- b. If the consultants is not satisfied with the order passed by the Executive Director (Planning) as aforesaid, the consultant may within thirty days of receipt by him of any such order appeal against it to the Managing Director who, if convinced that prima facie the consultants claim rejected by Executive Director (Planning) is not frivolous and that there is some substance in the claim of the consultant as would merit a detailed examination through a suitable committee appointed for the purpose by the Managing Director if necessary and in that case decision taken by the committee shall be finalized by the competent authority and same shall be binding to the Consultant

# **5.1.12** Obligations of the Consultants

#### **5.1.12.1** General

a) Standards of Performance

The Consultants shall perform the Services and carry out their obligations hereunder with all due diligence, efficiency and economy in accordance with Generally accepted professional techniques and practices and shall observe sound management practices and employ appropriate advanced technology and safe and effective equipment, machinery, materials and methods. The Consultants shall always act, in respect of any matter relating to this Contract or to the services, as faithful advisor to the Client, and shall at all times support and safeguard the Client's Legitimate interests in any dealings with Sub-consultants or Third Parties.

b) Law Governing Services

The Consultants shall perform the services in accordance with the Applicable Law and shall take all practicable steps to ensure that any Sub- consultants, as well as the Personnel of the Consultants and any Sub – consultant, comply with the Applicable Law.

#### 5.1.12.2 Conflict of Interest

a) Consultants Not to Benefit from Commissions, Discounts, etc. The remuneration of the Consultants, shall constitute the Consultant's sole remuneration in connection with this Contract or the Services and, the Consultants shall not accept for their own benefit any trade commission, discount or similar payment in connection with activities pursuant to this Contract or to the services or in the discharge of their obligations hereunder, and or to the Consultants shall use their best efforts to ensure that any sub – consultants, as well as the Personnel and agents of them, similarly shall not receive any such additional remuneration.

## b) Consultants and Affiliates Not to engage in Certain Activities

The Consultants agree that during the term of this Contract and after its termination, the Consultants and any entity affiliated with the Consultants as well as any Sub-Consultant and any entity affiliated with such Sub- Consultant, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works or services (other than the Services any continuation thereof) for any project resulting from or closely related to the Services.

# c) Prohibition of Conflicting Activities

The Consultants shall not engage, and shall cause their Personnel not to engage, either directly or indirectly, in any of the following activities:

- During the term of this Contract, any business or professional activities in the Government's country which would conflict with the activities assigned to them under this Contract; and
- ii. After the termination of this contract, such other activities as may be specified in the SCC.

#### **5.1.12.3** Confidentiality

The Consultants, their sub consultants and the Personnel of either of them shall not, either during the term or within two (2) years after the expiration of this Contract, disclose any proprietary or confidential information relating to the Project, the Services, this Contract or the Client's business or operations without the prior written consent of the Client.

# **5.1.12.4** Liability of the Consultants

Subject to additional provisions, if any set forth in the SCC, the Consultants liability under this Contract shall be as provided by the Applicable Law.

# 5.1.12.5 Insurance to be Taken Out by the Consultants

#### The Consultants

i) shall take out and maintain, and shall cause any Sub – consultants to take out and maintain, at their (or the Sub – Consultants, as the case may be) own cost but on

RFP for Carrying out Real Estate Market Assessment and Financial Feasibility for Properties in vicinity of Metro Line-3 terms and conditions approved by the Client, insurance against the risks, and for the coverage, as shall be specified in the SCC, and

ii) at the Client's request, shall provide evidence to the Client showing that such insurance has been taken out and maintained and that the current premiums therefore have been paid.

# 5.1.12.6 Consultants Actions Requiring Client's Prior Approval

The Consultant shall obtain the Client's prior approval in writing before taking any of the following actions:

- a) Appointing such members of the Personnel ("Consultants sub consultants' Key Personnel") merely by title but not by name. The consultant shall not change the Key Personnel proposed for the work without any valid reasons acceptable to the Client. A penalty of Rs. 25,000/- will be levied if the consultant changes the Key Personnel proposed without valid reasons.
- b) Entering into subcontract for the performance of any part of the Services, and note
  - that the selection of the Sub Contractor and the terms and conditions
    of the subcontract shall have been approved in writing by the Client prior
    to the execution of the sub-contract, and
  - that the Consultants shall remain fully liable for the performance of the Services by the sub-consultant and its Personnel pursuant to this Contract; and
- c) Any other action that may be specified in the SCC.

# 5.1.12.7 Reporting Obligations

The Consultants shall submit to the Client the reports and documents as may be specified hereto, in the form, in the numbers and within the time periods set forth.

# 5.1.12.8 Documents prepared by the Consultants to be the Property of the Client

All plans, drawings, specifications, designs, reports, other documents and software prepared by the Consultants for the Client under this Contract shall become and remain the property of the Client, and the Consultants shall not later than upon termination or expiration of this Contract, deliver all such documents to the Client, together with a detailed inventory thereof. The Consultants may retain a copy of such documents and software, Restrictions about the future use of these documents and software, if any shall be specified in the SCC.

# 5.1.12.9 Equipment and Material Furnished by the Client

All the required material, equipment required for the job shall be arranged by the Consultant.

# 5.1.13 Consultants Personnel and Sub - Consultants

#### **5.1.13.1** General

The Consultants shall employ and provide such qualified and experienced Personnel and Sub-consultants as are required to carry out the Services.

# **5.1.13.2 Description of Personnel**

- a) Name of the key persons shall be given.
- b) If additional work is required beyond the scope of the Services specified, the estimated periods of engagement of Key Personnel may be increased by agreement in writing between the Client and the Consultants, if any such increase shall not, except as otherwise agreed, cause payments under this Contract to exceed the ceilings.

# 5.1.14 Approval of Personnel

The Key Personnel and Sub –consultants listed by title as well as by name are required to be approved by the Client. In respect of other Key Personnel which the Consultants propose to use in the carrying out of the Services, the Consultants shall submit to the client for review and approval a copy of their biographical data.

## 5.1.15 Removal and / or Replacement of Personnel

a) Except as the Client may otherwise agree, no changes shall be made in the Key Personnel. If, for any reason beyond the reasonable control of the Consultants, it becomes necessary to replace any of the Personnel, the Consultants shall forthwith provide as a replacement a person of equivalent or better qualifications.

## b) If the Client

- (i) finds that any of the Personnel has committed serious misconduct or has been charged with having committed a criminal action, or
- (ii) has reasonable cause to be dissatisfied with the performance of any of the Personnel, then the Consultants shall, at the Client's written request specifying the grounds therefore, forthwith provide as a replacement a person with qualification and experience acceptable to the Client.
- c) Any of the Personnel provided as a replacement under Clauses (a) and (b) above, the rate of remuneration applicable to such person as well as any reimbursable expenditures

RFP for Carrying out Real Estate Market Assessment and Financial Feasibility for Properties in vicinity of Metro Line-3 (including expenditures due to the number of eligible dependents) the Consultants may wish to claim as a result of such replacement, shall be subject to the prior written approval by the Client. Except as the Client may otherwise agree,

- (i) the Consultants shall bear all additional travel and other costs arising out of or incidental to any removal and/or replacement, and
- ii) the remuneration to be paid for any of the Personnel provided as a replacement shall not exceed the remuneration which would have been payable to the Personnel replaced. In case, the personnel of consultant remain absent from work for more than 15 days, proportionate payment will be deducted from consultant's payments.
- d) A penalty of Rs. 25,000/- will also be levied if the consultant changes the Key Personnel proposed without valid reasons or without prior information to the client.

# 5.1.16 Fairness and Good Faith

#### **5.1.16.1** Good Faith

The Parties undertake to act in good faith with respect to each other's rights under this Contract and to adopt all reasonable measures to ensure the realization of the objective of this Contract.

## **5.1.16.2 Operation of the Contract**

The Parties recognize that it is impractical in this Contract to provide for every contingency which may arise during the life of the Contract, and the Parties hereby agree that it is their intention that this Contract, shall operate fairly as between them, and without detriments to the interest of either of them, and that, if during the term of this Contract either Party believes that this Contract is operating unfairly, the Parties will use their best efforts to agree on such action as may be necessary to remove the cause or causes of such unfairness, but no failure to agree on any action pursuant to this Clause shall give rise to a dispute subject to arbitration.

# **5.1.17** Settlement of Disputes

# **5.1.17.1 Dispute Resolution:**

If the dispute cannot be settled amicably within sixty (60) days after serving notice of dispute, the Parties may endeavour to settle the dispute by way of an arbitration under the provisions of the Arbitration & Conciliation Act, 1996 including its amendments thereof. The sole arbitrator shall be appointed by mutual consent of both the parties within 30 days from the date of first written intimation of the intent to resolve the dispute by arbitration. If the parties fail to appoint the sole arbitrator by mutual consent, as above, the same shall be appointed as per the provision of the Arbitration and

RFP for Carrying out Real Estate Market Assessment and Financial Feasibility for Properties in vicinity of Metro Line-3

Conciliation Act, 1996, including its amendments thereof. The Seat of arbitration shall be Mumbai and the language of arbitration shall be English. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon the Parties. Both the parties shall bear the cost of the arbitration in equal proportion unless otherwise decided by the sole arbitrator. The parties agree that the existence and content of the arbitration and the terms of the order or award made in the arbitration shall, except as may be required by law, be kept confidential.

# **5.2SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT**

Number of GCC Clause	Amendments of, and Supplements to, Clauses in the General Conditions of Contract		
5.1.4	The addresses are:		
	Employer:		
	Mumbai Metro Rail Corporation Limited		
	Attention: R. Ramana, Executive Director (Planning)		
	Consultant: (Registered address of awardee tenderer)		
5.1.6	The authorized Representatives are:		
	For the Employer: R. Ramana, Executive Director (Planning)		
	For the Consultant: The Authorized Representative, mentioned in Authority		
	letter.		
5.1.7	The consultants, Sub- consultants and the Personnel shall pay the taxes, duties,		
	fees, levies and other impositions levied under the existing, amended or enacted		
	laws during life of this contract and the client shall perform such duties regarding		
	the deduction of such tax as per prevalent laws in force.		
5.1.9.1	The effective date shall come into effect on the date contract is signed by both		
	parties		
5.1.9.2	The date of commencement of services is 15 days from the effective date.		
5.1.9.3	The time period shall be 3 months from the effective date of contract		
5.1.12.4	Limitation of the Consultants liability towards the Client		
	a) Except in case of gross negligence or willful misconduct on the part		
	of the Consultants or on the part of any person or firm acting on		
	behalf of the Consultants in carrying out the services, the		
	Consultants, with respect to damage caused by the Consultants to		
	the Client's property, shall not be liable to the Client:		
	i) For any indirect or consequential loss or damage, and		
	ii) For any direct loss or damage that exceeds		
	(A) the total payments for Professional Fees and		
	Reimbursable Expenditures made or expected to		
	be made to the Consultants		
	Or		

	(B) entitled to receive from any insurance maintained
	by the Consultants to cover such a liability,
	whichever of (A) or (B) is higher.
	b) This limitation of liability shall not affect the Consultants liability,
	if any, for damage to third Parties caused by the Consultants or any
	person or firm acting on behalf of the Consultants in carrying out
	the Services.
5.1.12.5	The risks and the coverages shall be as follows: The insurance shall be Taken
	from: Directorate of Insurance Maharashtra State, Mumbai - 400051.
	a) Third Party motor vehicle liability insurance as required under
	Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 in respect of motor vehicles operated in
	India by Consultants or their Personnel or any Sub- consultants or
	their Personnel for the Period of consultancy.
	b) Third Party liability insurance with a minimum coverage of Rs.5.0
	Lakh for the period of consultancy.
	c) Professional liability insurance valid for a period of consultancy,
	with a minimum coverage equal to Estimated remuneration and
	reimbursable as per 5.1.12.4 (a) (ii) of SCC of the consultancy.
	d) Client's liability and worker's compensation insurance in respect of
	the Personnel of the Consultants and of any Sub- consultant, in
	accordance with the relevant provisions of the Applicable Law, as
	well as, with respect to such Personnel, any such life, health
	accident, travel or other insurance as may be appropriate; and
	e) Insurance against loss of or damage to i) equipment purchased in
	whole or in part with funds provided under this Contract, ii) the
	Consultants property used in the performance of the Services, and
	iii) any documents prepared by the Consultants in the Performance
	of the Services.
5.1.12.8	The Consultants shall not use these documents for purposes unrelated
	to this Contract without the Prior written approval of the Client.

of Contract (GCC) in case of any contradiction between SCC and GCC.